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Advertisements of Products
and Services

The Board does not grant approvals 1o any company with
reference to a particular product or service being cffered.

It has come to the Board's attention that staternents have
besn made in certain promotional and advertising literature
which indicate that the Board has granted approval to products
or sarvices. In particular, the Board is aware that a certain
company offering a computerized trading and recordkeeping
system noted in advertisements that this system had been
»approvad" by the Board.

The Board has the authority to adopt rules concerming trans-
actions in municipal sacurities effected by brokers, dealers and
municipal securities dealers. The Board does not grant approv-
als to any company with reference to a particular product or
service being offered.

v

Calendar

June 1,1992 — Comments due on draft amend-
ments to rule G-36
— Comments due on an implemen-
tation schedule for amendments
to rules G-12 and G-15
— Comrnents due on open inter-
dealar transactions
July 1,1992 — Effective date of amendments to
rule A-13 and revisions to Forms
G-36
— Amendments o rule G-3, on
professional qualifications

Pending
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Continuing Disclosure Information
Pilot System

Amendment to Facllity Approved

The amendment wiil allow the CDi system, on a pllot basis,
to accept and disseminate CDi submitted by mail and by
facsimiletransmisslon, as well as by electronic submission,

On April 6, 1992, the Securities and Exchange Commission
approved an amendment to the Board's filing regarding a
proposed Board facility to accept and disseminate continuing
disclosure information (CDI) about municipal securities Is-
sues.! The filing is a facility plan for the Board to operate a
systemto acceptvoluntarily submitted CDI regarding municipal
securities issues and to disseminate that information. The
Board revised the filing to allow the proposed system, ona pilot
basis, to accept and disseminate CD] submifted by mail and by
facsimile transmission, as well as the elactronic submissions
originally contemplated by the system. The Board anticipates
that the system will bacome operational within six months.

Background

The system would becoms part of the Board's Municipal
Securities Information Library™ (MSIL™) system.?2 The Board
initially filed tha facility on June 22, 1990, On Junse 6, 1991, the
Commission held an Open Meeting at which it discussed the
CDl filing and approved two other filings relating to tha MSIL
system.* Atthat meeting, the Commission tabled further con-
sideration of the systern for accepting and disseminating CDI.

As initially filad with the Commission, the proposed CDI
system would have accepted CDI voluntarily submitied by
trustees, issuers or persons dasignated by issuers and would
have begun operations by accepting CDI in the form of shot,
textual disclosure notices.® The proposed system would have

1 SEC Release No. 34-30556.

accepted this CD! only if submitted electronically via computer
modem. The system accordingly was called the "Continuing
Disclosureinformation/Electronic Submission® or*CDI/ES" sys-
tem. Upon receipt of a disclosure document in electronic form,
the CDIES system would have retransmitted the documsnt
electronically, via computer modem, to ail CDI/ES system
subscribers simultaneousty.

At the June 6 Open Meeting, the Commission stated its
concem that the proposed CDI/ES system would not allow
issuers and trustees of municipal securities to submit their CDI
in paper form or by facsimile transmissions. The Commission
suggestedthat voluntary submission of CDIwould befaciltated
if the proposed system accepted paper and/or facsimile trans-
missions of documents. In response to these comments, the
Board has revised the filing to allow the proposed systam to
accept and disseminate CDI submitted by mail and by facsimile
transmission as well as the electronic submissions originally
contemplated by the CDI/ES system.

Program Would be Operated on a Pilot Basis

The revised system, called the CDI Pilot System (or "Pilot
System”) would be operated on a pilot basis for a period of 18
months. Atthe end ofthe pilot period, the Board would evaluate
system operations and decide whether to continue, substan-
tially modify or discontinue the system. In addition, the Pilot
System would be implemented in phases. Atthe end of each
phase, the Board would evaluate and address any 1echnical,
policy and cost issues which arose during that phase, prior to
committing the system to a greater capacity.

Duringthefirst six months of pilot operations, the Pilot System
would accept CDI only from trustees. After this phase, CDI

Questions about the amendment may be directed to
Harold L. Johnson, Deputy General Counsel.

2 Municipal Securities Information Library and MSIL are trademarks of the Board.

2 OnJune 22, 1990, the Board also filed two other filings relating to the MSIL system. One of the filings (SR-MSRB-90-3) was an amendmentto rule
G-36 requiring underwriters to provide certain advance refunding documents to the Board. The otherfiling (SR-MSRB-80-2) was a plan for a facility
to accept and disseminate copies of official statements and advance refunding documaents sent to the Board under rule G-36 {the "OS/ARD* System)

and included the overall plan for the MSIL system.

4 SR-MSRB-90-3was approved in Securities Exchange Act Release No. 2929% {June 13, 1951) published in56 Federa! Register 26204 and SR-MSRB-
90-2 was approved in Securities Exchange Act Release No, 28298 (June 13, 1891) published in 56 Faderal Register 28194,
5 See Continuing Disclosure information/Elactronic Submission System, MSARB Reports, Vol. 10, No. 3 {July 1930) st 3-6.
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would be accepted fromissuers aswell astrustees. Limitingthe

systemn initially to trustees would aliow the Board to gain expe-

" rience with a relatively limited universe of potential submitters
(approximatety 1,800 trustess), prior to expanding the system

-toamuchlargerand morediverse universe of potential submitters
{approximately 80,000 issuers).

The Board also anticipates that, during the pilot period, the
CDI Pilot System would be limited to short disclosure docu-
ments {e.g., one to three pages in length or the equivalent in
electronic form, if provided electronically by modem). This is
consistent with the original CDI/ES system plan, which was to
begin operations with these types of documents. The Board
notes that many of the time-critical disclosure documents that
can have an immaediate effect on market prices fall within this
category (e.g., "technical defautt" or "pre-default notices" by
trustess). The Board balieves that the CD| Pilot System, by
facilitating the dissemination of such notices, would address
one of the most important problems with respect to CDlin the
municipal securities market and would be capable of operating
‘immediately in a successful and cost-effective manner. After
gaining experience with short disclosure notices, the Board
would evaluate how to expand the systemn to accommodate
longer CDI1.®

Acceptance of Paper and Facsimile Transmissions

With respect to the addition of paper and facsimile submis-
sion capabilities, the Board agrees with the point made at the
Commission's June 6 Open Meeting, that, by allowing paper
documents and facsimile transmissions to be sent to the sys-
tem, voluntary submissions of documents by issuers and
trustees can be ancouraged and facilitated. The Board had
considered adding the capabhility forthe MSIL systemto accept
paper copias of CDI even prior to the Commission's June 6
meeting and was aware that certain commentators on the
proposed CDI/ES system had recommended this capability for
the CDI/ES systemn. The Board's initial filing, which limited the
proposed system to elactronic submissions, was based onthe
Board's intention to construct a system that: {i) could be
implemented quickly to address certain types of CDI that are
time-critical and important to the market; (i) ensured that CDI
submitted to the system would be disseminated quickly and
would be made available simultaneously to all system subscrib-
ers; and (iif) would be capable of operating relatively inexpsn-
sively and being supported primarily by user fees.

As discussed further below, the Board believes that the CDI
Pilot Systemn generally can meet these objectives, albeit at a
potentially greater cost. The Board agrees with the conclusion
of the Commission, expressed in its order approving the 0S/
ARD systarn, that “there exists a lack of adequate information
regarding municipal issuers and the terms of municipal securi-
ties in the market, and that increased availability of offering
statements and other disclosure items already voluntarily pre-
pared by municipal issuers would increase efficiency and

fairness in the marketplace and provide needed protection to
investors from sales practice fraud and manipulation® (empha-
sis added). The Board believes that, by revising its proposed
systemn for CDI to accept paper and facsimile transmissions, it
would encourage and facilitate submission of voluntarily pre-
pared disclosure documents for dissemination to the market.
Thus, the Board baelieves that the CDI Pilot System enhances
the ability of the proposed system to serve the need outiined by
the Commission.

Procedures for Accepting and Disseminating Paper and
Facsimile Documents

For documents submitted by mail or by facsimile transmis-
sion, the CDI Pilot System would utilize procedures, similar to
those contemplated by the original CDI/ES system, which: (j)
collect information from the document submitter identifying
who is submitting the document, the issuer of the securities 10
which the document relates and the document being submit-
ted; and (ii) attempt to verify the origin of the document to help
ensure the authenticity of the document prior to dissemination
by the system. To accomplish this latter function, the CDI Pilot
System would require each issuer or trustee wishing to submit
CD! for dissernination 1o first contact the Board and provide
information such as tha submitter's telephone number and the
name(s) of the parson(s) who will be responsible for informa-
tion provided by the submitter.

The CDI Pilot System would provide two methods of dissemi-
nation. The primary means of dissemination would be a
subscription service transmitting each document accepted by.
the Pilot System as soon as possible after the document is
accepted (“subscription service’). As contemplated in the
original CDYES system, CDI sent to the CDI Pilot System by
madem would ba sent to subscribers by modem. CDI sentto
the CD! Pilot System in paper form or by facsimile transmission
would be sent to subscribers by facsimile transmission. The
Board believes that using facsimile and modem transmission
for dissemination providesthe quickest dissemination possible
for CDI receivad in paper and facsimile form, while providing all
subscrilers with access to the CDI on an equal and simulia-
neous basis. As a secondary means of dissemination, docu-
ments provided to subscribers also would be available for
review and copying atthe Board's Public Access Facility (PAF),
located atthe Board's offices. As was the case forthe proposed
CDI/ES system, the Board would encourags redistribution of
CDI obtained from the CDI Pilot System and would place no
restrictions on redistribution.

The Board would operate the CDI Pilot System with the goal
of disseminating CDi as quickly as possible after the docu-
ments are received by the system. However, bacause of the
manual processing necessary for paper and facsimile docu-
ments, the time period between receipt of a paper or facsimile
document and its dissemination would be somewhat longer
than the several minutes pianned for dissemination of elec-

.

8 Many ditferenttypes and styles of longerdocuments are considered *disclosure decuments® or CDl by issuers, trustees and othermarket participants.

These documents, which are preduced in diverse formats, sizes and styles, often contain a preponderance of information that Is of little or margine’
interest fo securities investors and present considerable challenges to any document collection and dissemination system which seeks to provid.

CDl to the market in a useful and cost-sffective manner. As noted by the Commission in its order approving the OS/ARD system, Section 15B(d) (2)
of the Exchange Act prevents the Board from setting form and content standards for issuer documents. Securities Exchange Act Felease No, 26298

{(June 13, 1991} at 46.
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tronic-submissions in the CDI/ES system.

The actual time {or dissemination of an incoming paper or
facsimile document would depend upon a number of factors,
suchas the volume ofincoming CDI, which cannot be predicted
atthis time. The Board is planning the CDI Pilot System so that
it can accommodate up to 100 incoming documents per day
during the pilot period. The Board also plans for the system to
meet the following minimum goals in the event of such a high
volume of input. CDI submitted by computer modem would
continue to be disseminated within minutes of the final authori-
zation given by the submitter. This is possible because these
documents can be processed for acceptance and dissemina-
tion with automated techniques. CDI submitted by facsimile
transmission and mail would be transmitted to subscribers no
later than the day that 1t is raceived by the Board. The Board
anticipates that normal time between receipt and dissemination
of adocument would be much faster thanthis. As between mail
andfacsimiletransmissions, the Board balieves that asubmitter
likely would use facsimile transmission if he believed that the
CDi contained time-critical information of immediate impor-
tance to the market, Therefore, the Board would give priority in
system processing queues to incoming facsimile transmis-
sions over mailed documents.

Hours of Operation

As was planned for the proposed CDIfES system, the CDI
Pilot System would operate on business days on which the
Boardis open (most business days exceptforfederal holidays).
The Pilot Systern would receive documents submitted by trus-
tees and issuers by mail, facsimile transmission and computer
modem from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time. Thase hours
forreceipt of documents have been shifted one-half hour earfier
than in the plan for the proposed CDI/ES systemto accommo-
date the manual, end-of-day processing that would be neces-
sitated by incoming paper and facsimile transmissions.

Subscribers would bagin receiving transmissions from the
systemn at 9:00 a.m. Eastern Time and transmissions would
continue throughout the business day until all documents
accepted by the system onthat day aretransmitted. During PAF
business hours {9:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m, Eastern Time), PAF
users would have access to all documents that have been
disseminated to subscribers.

System Costs and Fees
The manual processing and dissemination that would be

necessary for incoming paper and facsimile transmissions of

CDiincrease the potential cost of the proposed system fromthe
$100,000 yearly operational cost estimated for the proposed
CDI/ES system. The operational cost of the CDI Pilot System
would be dependent on a number of factors that can not be
predicted in advance, including: (i} the number of submitters
that will seek access to the system,; (i} the volume of incoming
documants; {jii) the percentages of incoming documents that
are mailed, transmitted by facsimile, and transmitted by mo-
dam; (iv) the intra-day pattern of submissions; (v} the number
of subscribers; and (vi) the number of PAF users seeking CDI
and the volume of their document requests. Based on an
assumption of 50 incoming documents per day by mail or
tacsimile transmission, 20 subscribers, and relatively limited
PAF use, the Board anticipates that yearly operational costs
would fafl within a range of $300,000 to $500,000. Cost esti-
mates could move outside this range depending on voiume of
incoming paper or facsimile documents and the number of
subscribers and PAF users.

Although Board funds would be expended to initiate the
project and most likely would be necessary to support the Pilot
System, the Board intends that, overtime, the operational costs
of any Board-operated CDi systemwould be borne primarily by
teas paid by system subscribers and PAF users, Submitters
would not be charged a fee to establish submitter files or to
submit documents to the systam.

Since operational costs and the number of subseribers and
PAF users cannot be predicted at this time, fee estimates forthe
CD! Pilot System necessarily are preliminary and subject to
change. Atamaximum, total subscriber and PAF fees received
by the Board would not exceed the operational cost of the
system. Ataminimum, feeswould cover costs of dissemination
of the documents. Subscribers would pay a one time “set-up”
fee to cover the cost of equipment and telephone installation
necessary {o service that subscriber (estimated at $2,000). In
addition, a subscriber would pay a fiat fee to receive all docu-
ments accepted by the system and would pay for thetelephone
charges actually incurred by the Board to transmit documents
tothat subscriber. Atthistime, the Board estimates thatfirstyear
costs for the subscription service (excluding the set-up fee)
would be approximately $10,000 to $15,000, plus the cost of
telephone service to that subscriber. PAF users would be able
1o review documents free of charge. Paper copies of docu-
ments could be obtained at the PAF at a cost of approximately
20¢ per page.

April 5, 1992
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Underwriting Assessments:
Rule A-13

Amendment Flled

The amendment makes changes relating to () the Board's
method of collecting and accounting for underwriting
assessments;(il) the primary offerings subjectto underwrit-
ing assessment; and (iil} an assessment rate for offerings
of certain short-term and puttable securities.

The amendment will become effective for all primary
offerings made on or after July 1, 1992. Dealers should wait
until receiving an involce from the Board prior to paying
underwriting assessments for offerings made after that
date,

On March 10, 1892, the Board filed with the Securities and
. Exchange Commission anamendment to rule A-13, onassess-
-ments relating to the underwriting of municipal securities offer-
ings (underwriting assessments}).' The amendment relates {0
the Board's method of assessment, the scope of offerings
which are assessed and assessment rates. The Board believes
that the amendment provides a more equitable method for
assessing underwriters for the funds necessary to defray the
expenses of operating and administering the Board. The
amendment also provides that the Board will invoice underwrit-
ers for underwriting assessments, which the Board believes will
be a convenience to underwriters and will increase the effi-
ciency of the Beard's coliection and accounting procedures.
The amendment to rule A-13 will become effective on July 1,
1992,

Current Provisions of Rule A-13

Rule A-13 currently requires underwriters to pay to the Board
an underwriting assessment of 3¢ per$1,000 par valuefor each
new issue of municipal securities thatis $1 millionor morein par
value and two years ormore inmaturity. Managingunderwriters
mustsubmitthe required A-13fee, along withacompleted Form
A-13 and a copy ofthe front page of the official statement, if one
is prepared by or on behalf of the issuer. The A-13Form andfee
must be received by the Board within 30 days after settlement
withthe issuer. The Board does not currently invoice underwrit-

ors for underwriting assessments.

To help ensure that underwriters are complying withthe rule,
the Board currently reviews the results of negotiated and com-
petitive sales reported inindustry publications. Fromtheselists,
the Board identifies issuas that are covered by rule A-13 (L.e., all
municipal securities issuas except those under $1 million in par
value orundertwoyears in maturity) and creates receivables for
the Board's accounting system. Payments for approximately
8,000 issues were handled in this manner in fiscal year 1991,

Under this rule A-13 fee collection system, the Board fre-
quently receives payment for issues that are not listed in
industry publications (e.g., private placements and certain
small issues). Moreover, in certain instances, the information
obtained from these publications is erronaous (e.g., the par
value of an issue Is listed incorrectly). As a resutt, the Board's

cumrent accounting procedure must handle numerous entriesto *

make adjustments for problems that are encounterad when the
lists of reported issues do not match the underwriting assess-
ments received. This occasions numerous letters to and from
underwriters relating to additional payments or refunds which
are dua, - Approximately 50-75 dunning letters per month are
sent to underwriters that fail to pay underwriting assessments.
This process is time-consuming for the Board as well as for
underwriters.

New Provisions of Rule A-13

The amandment to rule A-13 makes changes relating to: (i)
the Board's method of collecting and accounting for underwrit-
ing assessments; (i) the primary offerings subject to underwrit-
ing assessment; and (i) an assessment rate for offerings of
certain short-term and puttable securities..

New Method of Collecting and Accounting for Under-
writing Assessments

The Board has determined that, rather than using industry
publications to determine its receivables, it will base the receiv-

Questions about the amendment may be directed to
Christopher A. Taylor, Executive Director.

1 SEC File No. SR-MSRB-92-3. Comments filed with the Commission should refer to the file number,
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ables for underwriting assessments on official statements sent
to the Board under rule G-36. Rule G-36 requires managing
underwriters to submit to the Board official statements for most
primary offerings of municipal securities. Using these official
statements and the associated Forms G-36(0S) submitted by
managing underwriters, the Board will be able to create more
accurate recejvables and will be able to invoice managing
undarwriters for the underwriting assessments that are due.2
The Board believes that the new invoicing procedure will be a
convenience to dealers, since it will provide each dealer with a
monthiy listing that identifies the offerings on which the dealer
has served as managing underwriter and the amount of under-
writing assessment that is due on each offering. Payments on
these invoices must be made to the Board within 30 days after
the date that the invoices are sent. .

For all offerings sold on or after the July 1, 1992, implemen-
tation date of the amendment, underwriters should wait for an
invoice from tha Board rather than automatically sending in an
underwriting assessment for their offerings. The use of Form
A-13 will be discontinued at that time since the information
needed by the Board for invoicing will be obtained from the
official staiements and forms sentto the Board under rule G-36.

New Scope of Rule A-13 and Lower Asgessment Rate
for Certaln Short-Term and Puttable Offerings

Under the amendment, all primary offerings of municipal
securities will be subject to underwriting assessment except for
those primary offerings that:

() have an aggregate par value less than $1,000,000;

(i) have a maturity of nine months or less;

(i) atthe option of the holder thereof, may betendered to
an issuer of such securities or its designated agent for
redemption or purchase at parvalue or more atleast as
frequently as every nine months until maturity, earlier
redsmption, or purchase by anissuer or its designated
agent; or

(iv) have authorized denominations of $100,000 or more
and are sold to no more than thirty-five persons each
of whom the broker, dealer or municipal securities
dealer reasonably believes: {(A) has the knowledge
and experience necessary to avaluate the merits and
risks of the investment; and (B) is not purchasing for
morethan one account, with aview toward distributing
the securities.

For those primary offerings subject to underwriting assess-
ment under the above criteria, the assessment rates under the
proposed rule change will be:

() for primary offerings in which all securities offered
have a stated maturity date less than two years (but
greaterthanninemonths), .001% (1¢ per$1,000) ofthe
par value;

{i) for primary offerings in which all securities offered, at
the option of the holder thereof, may batenderadto an
fssuer of such securities or its designated agent for
redemption or purchase at par value ormore atleast as
frequently as every two years (but not as frequently as
every nine months) until maturity, earier redemption,
or purchase by an issuer or its designated agent,
.001% (1¢ per $1,000) of the par value; and

(iif) for all other primary offerings subject to assessment,
.003% (3¢ per $1,000) of the par value.

Discussion of Changes in Rule A-13 Requirements

The primary offerings subject to underwriting assessment
and the assessment rates under rule A-13 have been changed
in some respects by the amendment. Because of the naw
procedure for collecting and accounting for underwriting as-
sessments, the scope of primary offerings subject to underwrit-
ing assessment has been adjusted to be more consistent with
the scope of primary offerings covered by rute G-36. The
proposed rule change does this in a manner that the Board
believes provides for an equitable assessment of primary offer-
ings. The specific revisions in the scope of rule A-13 and the
assessment rates are discussed below.

Application of Rule A-13 to "Primary Offerings, "Includ-

ing Some Remarketings

The amendment will revise rule A-13 to apply to all "primary
offerings* that are not spacifically exempted by the rule. The
effect of this modification is to include within the scope of rule
A-13 certain remarketings of municipal securities by brokers,
dealers and municipal securities dealers whenthe remarketings
are effected, directly or indirectly, by or on behalf ofthe issuer of
the securities. This change will make the scope of offerings
subject to underwriting assessiments more consistent with the
scope of offerings subject to the official statement delivery
requiremant set forth in rule G-36.

The remarketings that will be subject to assessment underthe
proposed rule change include only those remarketings that are
raguired 10 have an official statement under Securities Ex-
change Act Rule 15¢2-12 and forwhich the Board will receive an
official statement under rule G-36. However, any remarketing
(as well as any other primary offering) mesting cne or more of
the criteria for exemption will not be subject to underwriting
assessment, regardiess of whether it is subject to Rule 15¢2-12
or rule G-36.

Exemptionfor Certain Categorles of Offeringsfor Which
the Board May Not Receive Official Statemenis

Certain primary offerings are not subject to the requirements

of rule G-36. Forthese primary offerings, it is impossible forthe
Board to ensure that it will receive all official statements neces-

2 Prior to July 1, 1982, when the new procedure for collecting underwriting assessments will be implemernted, the Board will revise Form G-36(05)
1o request certain additional information from managing underwriters. This will facilitate the processing of the forms for rule A-13 purposes.

2 The term “primary offering® is defined in the amendment as an offering of municipal securities directly or indirectly by or on behalf of the issuer of
such securities, including any remarketing of such securities directly by or on behalf of the issuer of auch securities, This definition is taken from
Saecurities Exchange Act Rule 15¢2-12 and Is also used in defining the scope of Board rule G-36, on delivery of official statements to the Board.
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sary to invoice underwriters and generate receivables accu-
rately. To address this potential problem, the amendment
exempts from underwriting assessment: (i) offerings of secu-
rities with maturities of nine months or undert; (i) offerings of
securities with put provisions that, at the option of the holder
thereof, may be tendered to an issuer of such securities or its
designated agerit for redemption or purchase at par value or
more at least as frequently as every nine months until maturity,
earlier redemption, or purchase by an issuer or its designated
agent:* and (ili) “limited placements," /.e., offerings of securities
that have authorized denominations of $100,000 or more and
that are sold to no more than thirty-five persons each of whom
the broker, dealer or municipat securities dealer reasonably
believes: {(A) has tha knowledge and experience necessary to
avaluate the merits and risks of the investment; and (B) is not
purchasing for more than one account, with a view toward
distributing the securities.

Thea new axemptions from underwriting assessments createc
by the amendment will result in some primary offerings, which
currently are assessed under rule A-13, being excluded from
assessment. Specifically, certain *limited placements" and new
issue offerings of securities having put provisions nine months
or under in duration no longer will be assessed under the
proposed rule change.

Inclusion of Primary Offerings of Securities Under Two
Years, But Over Nine Months, in Maturity

The scope of rule A-13 currently excludes from assessment
new issues having final maturitles less than two years. As
revised by the amendment, rule A-13 will exempt a primary
offering if the maturity is nine months or less or if the securities
are marketed with a put period of nine months or less. Thus, the
amendment will add to the scope of rule A-13 certain primary
offerings with maturities under two years but over nine months
in length. Because thesa offerings are a significant part of the
municipal securitias market regulated by the Board, the Board
believes that it is appropriate for such offerings to be assessed
to help fund the Board's operations, albeit at a lower assess-
ment rate.

New Assessment Rate for Certaln Offerings

The amendment does not alter the assessment rate for most
primary offerings, which will remain at the current level of 3¢ per
$1,000 par value. However, for those offerings that have final
stated maturities under two years, but over nine months in
length, the Board believes that the short-term nature of the
securitias makas a lower rate appropriate. The Board has set
the lower rate at 1¢ per $1,000 par value. In addition, the
amendment treats primary offerings of securities with short-
term put provisions in amanner similar to offerings of securities
withshon-termmatuiities. Thus, forprimary offerings of puttable
securlties with put pericds greater than nine months, but less
thantwoyears, the offerings will be assessed atthe lower, short-
term rate. For example, the assessment rate for a primary

)

offering of securities with a one-ysar put period will be 1¢ per
$1,000, which is the same assessment rate for a new issue
offering with a final stated maturity of one year.

impact of Proposed Rule Change on Board Revenues

Tha revenuse effect of the amendment to the Board probably
will be neutral to moderately positive. The Board will lose
assessments on new issues that have put periods of nine
months or less and on"limited placements.” The Board will gain
feas on short-term securities with maturities greater than nine
months but less than two years and on certain remarketings of
sacurities with put provisions over nine months in duration. All
offerings on which fees will be lost are now assessed at the rate
of 3¢ per $1,000. Most offerings on which feas will be gained
will be assessed at the rate of 1¢ per $1,000.

Scope of Rule A-13 Compared to Rule G-36

Although a primary intent of the proposed rule change is to
make the scope of rule A-13 more consistent with rule G-36,
there will remain some differences inthe scope of the two rules.
For example, primary offerings under $1 million in par value
currently remain exempt from the scope of rule A-13, atthough
rule G-36 requires that official statements for such offerings, if
prepared, be sent to the Board. The Board has concluded to
maintainths A-13 exernptionfor offerings under $1 million atthis
time even though this represents one area in which rule A-13is
not consistent with rule G-36. D

The Board intends, in the future, to examins whether ado.
tional modifications are necessary in rules A-13 and/or G-36
andwhether it will be possibletomakethe scope ofthetworules
more coextensive. The Board believes that this would provide
an equitable allocation of underwriting assessments and wotrld
allowrule A-13feasto beinvoiced and receivables to be created
in the Board's accounting system in the most efficient and
accurate manner possible.

The amendments to rule A-13 will become effective for all
primary offerings made on or after July 1, 1992. Therefore,
dealers should wait until receiving an invoice from the Board
prior to paying undarwriting assessments for offerings made
gfter that date.

March 16, 1992

Text of Proposed Amendment*

Rule A-13. Underwriting Asseassment for Brokers, Dealers
and Municlpal Securities Dealers

{a) Each broker, dealer and municipal securilies dealer shall
pay to the Board an underwriting fee as set forth in paragraph
{b) for all municipal securities purchasad from an issuer by or
through such broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer,
whather actmg as pnncrpal or agent as part of a npew-iaade

4 The exemptions for offerings of securities with maturities of nine months or under and for securities with put provisions of nine months or less in
duration are somewhat broader than the exemptions for similar offerings under rule G-36. This is becauss the rule A-13 exemptions do not require

that the securities have minimum denominations of $100,000,
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the-date-of-the-seeurties: primary offering, provided that, this
rule shall not apply to & primary offering of securities if alt such
securities in the primary offering:

() _have an agqregate par value less than $1,000,000;
(i} have a final stated maturity of nine months or less:

(it _stthe option of the holderthereot, may be tendered to
an issuer of such securities or its designated agent for
rademption or purchase at par value or more at least as
fraquently as every nine months_until maturity, earlier
redemption, or purchase by an issuer or its designated
agent; or

(ivi have authorized denominations of $100,000 or more
and are sold to no more than thirty-five persons each
whom the broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer
reasonably believes: {A) has the knowledgs and experi-
ence_necessary to evaluate the merits and risks of the
investment; and (B} is not purchasing for more than one

account, with a view toward distributing the sacurities.
If a syndicate or similar account has been formed for the

purchase of the securitias, the fee shall be paid by the manag-
ing underwriter on behalf of each participant inthe syndicate or
similar account.

{b)_For those primary offerings subject to assessment under
saction (a) above~Fthe amount of the underwriting fee is:

tort - Bk s II:IBBI.
{i)_forprimary offerings inwhich alt securities offered have

* Underlining indicates new language; strikethrough indicates deletions.

—

afinal stated maturity less than two years, .001% ($.01 par
1,000) of the par value;

(i) for primary offerings inwhich all securitias offered, atthe

option of the holder thergof, may be tendered to an issuer
of such securitias or its designated agent for redemption or
purchase at par value or more at least as frequently as
every two years until maturity eariier redemption, or puy-
chase by an issuer or its designated agent, .001% ($.01 per
1,000) of the par value; and
(iii) for all other primayy offerings sublect to this rule, .003%
{$.03 per $1,000) of the par vaiue.

pary-the-payment-of-the-fee:

{c) The Board periodically wifl invoice brokers, dealers and
municipal securities dealers for pavment of underwriting fees.
The underwriting fee must be paid within 30 days of the sending
of the invoice by the Board.

(d) For purpeses of this rule, the term *primary offering” shatl
mean an offering of municipal securities directly or indirsctly by
or on baehalf of the issuer of such securities, including any
remarketing of such securitiss directly by or on behatt of the

issuer of such securities.

10
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Forms G-36(0OS) and
G-36(ARD)

Amendments Filed

The amendments revise Forms G-35(0S) and G-36(ARD)
to collectinformation necessary for involcing underwrlting
assessments as well as other technical changes.

On March 30, 1992, the Board filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission amendments to Form G-36(08) and
Form G-36(ARD). In addition to other technical changes, the
amendments revise Form G-36(0S) and Form G-36(ARD) to
collect certain information necessary for accurate invoicing of
underwriting assessments by the Board. The amendments
became effective uponfiling. The Board has settheimplemen-
tation dateforthe revisadforms forJuly 1, 1992, the datethat the
recent amendmentsto rule A-13 will become effective.2 Dealers
may begin using the forms at this time; however, priorto July 1,
1992, dealers still must submit their underwriting assessments
pursuart to rule A-13 along with a completed Form A-13.

Background

The Board has determined that, to improve its accounting
system, it will base its receivables for underwriting assessments
onthe official statements received by the Board pursuanttorule
G-36.7 By using official statements, and the associated Forms
G-36(08) that must be submitted with the official statements,
the Board will be able to invoice underwriters directly for under-
writing assessments and will be able to maintain a more accu-
rate accounting of underwriting assessments that are duetothe
Board. Because of the new procedure for collecting and

accounting for underwriting assessments, on March 10, 1992,
the Board filed an amendment to rule A-13 which adjusts the
scope of primary offerings subject to that rule so that it will be
more consistent with the scope of primary offerings under rule
G-36.

Revisions to Form G-36(0S)

The amendments revise Form G-36(0S) to collect certain
additional information necessary for accurate invoicing of un-
derwriting assessments. The revised Form G-36(0S) requires
underwriters to indicate: (i) the existence of a put option within
nine months of the offering; (i) the existence of a put option
within two years of the offering; and (iii) that the offering is a

-

“limited ptacement* under SEC Rule 15¢2-12. This information j

is keyed to the requirements of rule A-13, as recently amended;
andwill halp to ensure thatthe underwriter is sent an invoice that
accurately reflects the underwriting assessment (if any) that is
due.

Other technical changes also were made to Form G-36(0S)
based on the Board's experience in processing documents
received under rule G-36. Thase include numbering all linesto
permit more efficient assistancetothosewho call the Board with
questions about the form, revising the description of issue(s)
line (line2) and thedated date(s) line (line4) to permitmorathan
one entry, and adding line 8, on par amount underwritten, for
those instances (e.g., shortterm notes) in which an underwriter
buys part of the offering without knowledge of who orhow many
underwriters bought the remainder.* The Board deleted the
reference to the number of series in the official statement from
Formn G-36(0S) because this information was not found to be

Questions about the amendments may be directed to
Thomas A. Hutton, Director of MSIL

1 SEC File No. SR-MSRB-82-4. Comments filed with the Commission should refer to the file number.
2 Sge, Notice on Underwriting Assessments on pages 7 through 10 of this issue. .
3jnadditiontocther requirements, rule G-36requires underwriterstosendtothe Board official statements and otherinformationon mostnew municip )

securities issues,

4This line is needed for billing purposes and o track those whofulfilied the requirements

an official statement.

)

of rule G-36. Each underwriter in such a case should submit
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useful. Line 13 also has bean added to require a responsible
party to state affirnatively that the document sent Is a final
official statement relating to a primary offering of municipal
securities. This will help ensure that the Board receives the
correct document. Finally, line 17 has been added to ensure
that the CUSIP numbers required by rule G-36 are included on
the form and to ensure that underwriters are aware that rule
G-34 requires that CUSIP numbers be assigned to all issues
which are sligible for CUSIP number assignment. CUSIP
numbers are used whenever possible in indexing official state-
ments received under rule G-36 and, currently, if GUSIP num-
bers are not Included, the forms and official statements are
returned to the underwriter for clarification. Line 17 may elimi-
nate the nead for some of this correspondance.

Reviglons to Form G-38{ARD)

The amendments aiso include technical changes to Form
G-36(ARD). This form must be sent to the Board undar rule
G-36 when an advance refunding decument (/.. escrow agree-
ment) is provided. All lines on Form G-36(ARD) have baen

——

numbered to permit more efficient assistance to those who calf
the Board with questions about the form. Qn line 4, the
submitter is to indicate whether the issue is partially or entirely
refunded. Thisinformationisimportantto users ofthe Municipal
Securiies Information Library,™ or MSIL,™ system’ because
outstanding issues that are partially refunded oftan receive new
CUSIP numbers, while entire refunded issues generally do not.
Line 8, regarding refunding issue(s), has been expanded to
permit more than one refunding issue per document and
language has been added explaining that submission of ad-
vance refunding documents for current refundings is not re-
quired. Finally, information conceming CUSIP numbers is
more spacific. The current Form G-36(ARD) asks for old and
new CUSIP numbers, whereas the new form asks for the
original CUSIP numbers assigned to the issue being refunded,
the new CUSIP numbers for the refunded issue (the parially
refunded portion oftheissue, fapplicable) and CUSIP numbaers
for the refunding Issue(s).

March 30, 1892

Revised Forms G-36(0S) and G-36(ARD) begin on the next page.

[ S o

5 Municipal Securities Information Library and MSIL are trademarks of the Board.
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4 DO NOT STAPLE THIS FORM )
FORM G-36(0OS) — FOR OFFICIAL STATEMENTS

1. NAME OF ISSUER(S): (1)

@
2. DESCRIPTION OF ISSUE(S): (1)

@
3. STATE(S)
4. DATED DATE(S): (1) )
5. DATE OF FINAL MATURITY OF OFFERING 6. DATE OF SALE
7. PAR VALUE OF OFFERING $

8. PAR AMOUNT UNDERWRITTEN (if there is no underwriting syndicate) 3

9. IS THIS AN AMENDED OR STICKERED OFFICIAL STATEMENT? [ ves CINo
@ 10. CHECK ALL THAT APPLY: )

a. [ At the option of the holder thereof, all securities in this offenng may be tendered to the issuer of such securities or its
designated agent for redemption or purchase at par value or more at least as frequently as every nine months until
maturity, earlier redemption, or purchase by the issuer or its designated agent.

b.[J At the option of the holder thereof, all securities in this offering may be tendered to the issuer of such securities or its
designated agent for redemption or purchase at par value or more at least as frequently as every two years until
maturity, earlier redemption, or purchase by the issuer or its designated agent.

c. [ This offering is exempt from SEC rule 15¢2-12 under section (c)(1) of that rule. Section (c)(1} of SEC rule 15¢2-12
states that an offering is exempt from the requirements of the rule if the securities offered have authorized denomina-
tions of $100,000 or more and are sold to no more than 35 persons each of whom the participating underwriter
believes: (1) has the knowledge and expertise necessary to evaluate the merits and risks of the investment; and (2) is
not purchasing for more than one account, with a view toward distributing the securities

11. MANAGING UNDERWRITER

12. NAME PHONE
(Must be an employee or officer of the underwriter named on line 11.)

13. The undersigned hereby states that the above-described document is a final official statement relating to a primary offering

of municipal securities.
Signed:

14. NAME PHONE
{Name of signer on line 13. Need not be repeated if same as on line 12.)

@15. ORGANIZATION ' )
(Organization of signer on line 13, Need not be repeated if same as on line 11.)

The information provided on this form will be used by the Board to compute any rule A-13 underwriting assessment that may be
due onthis offering. The managing underwriter listed online 11 will be sentaninvoice if arule A-13 assessment Is due on the offering.

CONTINUED ON OTHER SIDE




16. MATURITY DATE CUSIP NUMBER MATURITY DATE CUSIP NUMBER

;/j) ‘E

17. MSRB rule G-34 requires that CUSIP numbers be assigned to each new issue of municipal securities unless the issue is
ineligible for CUSIP number assignment under the eligibility criteria of the CUSIP Service Bureau.

0] Check here if the issue is ineligible for CUSIP number assignment.

J State the reason why the issue is ineligible for CUSIP number assignment: .

18. Submit two copies of the completed form along with two copies of the official statement to Municipal Securities Rulemaking
Board, 1818 N Street, NW, Suite 300, Washington, DC 20036-2491. Incomplete submissions will be returned for correction.



®

DO NOT STAPLE THIS FORM

FORM G-36(ARD) — FOR ADVANCE REFUNDING DOCUMENTS

1. DESCRIPTION ESCROW AGREEMENT

2. DATE OF ESCROW AGREEMENT

3. NUMBER OF ISSUES REFUNDED
(Fill out one form for each issue)

4. REFUNDED ISSUE—The issue is (check one): O partially O entirely refunded.

5. NAME OF ISSUER

6. DESCRIPTION OF ISSUE

7. DATED DATE )

8. REFUNDING ISSUE(S)—Submission is not required if there is no refunding issue or the refunding issue is a current
refunding (ie., the issue(s) refunded mature(s) in 90 days or less from the date of issuance of the refunding issue).

9. NAME OF ISSUER(S):
(1
(2)
10. DESCRIPTION OF ISSUE(S):
6y
2
11. DATED DATE(S): (1) @

12.MANAGING UNDERWRITER

13.NAME PHONE

14.PREPARED BY PHONE
(If same as on line 13, this line may be left blank)

15.0RGANIZATION ' )
(If same as on line 12, this line may be left blank)

CONTINUED ON OTHER SIDE




L
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92

S
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16. ORIGINAL INFORMATION FOR REFUNDED (OUTSTANDING) ISSUE

MATURITY DATE  CUSIP NUMBER MATURITY DATE  CUSIP NUMBER

17. NEW INFORMATION FOR REFUNDED (OUTSTANDING) ISSUE
(partially refunded)

MATURITY DATE  NEW CUSIP NUMBER MATURITY DATE = NEW CUSIP NUMBER

18. INFORMATION FOR REFUNDING (NEW) ISSUE

MATURITY DATE  CUSIP NUMBER MATURITY DATE  CUSIP NUMBER

19. Submit two completed copies of the form(s), along with two copies of the escrow agreement or its equivalent to Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board, 1818 N Street, NW, Washington, DC 20036-2491. Incomplete forms will be returned for
correction.
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Delivery of Official Statements to
the Board: Rule G-36

Comments Requested

The Board requests comments on draft amendments
which would result In the Board receiving copies of all
officlal statements that are preparedfor primary offerings of
municipal securities, with the exception of limited place-
ments. :

In addition to other requirements, Board rule G-36 requires
underwriters to send to the Board official statements and com-
pleted Forms G-36(0$) for certain primary offerings of munici-
pal securities. Rule G-36 currently exempts from this require-
ment three categories of primary offerings. The Board is
proposing to expand the scope of rule G-36 to include all
primary offerings for which official statements are prepared,
except forthose offerings that are "limited placements® meeting
the criteria set forth In paragraph (1) of section (c) of Securities
Exchange Act Rule 15c2-12.

Current Requirements of Rule G-36

Most primary offerings of municipal securities currently are
subjsct to the requiremaents of rute G-36. For purposes of rule
G-36, a "primary offering” is an offering of municipal securities
directly or indirectly by or on behalf of an issuer of such
securities, including certain remarketings. For those primary
offerings covered by the rule, if a final official statement' is
prepared by or on behalf of the issuer of the securities, the
underwriter must send two copies of the document to the

Board, along withtwo completed Forms G-36(0S).? The official
statementsthanare made avallableto interested partissthrough
the Board's Municipal Securities Information Library™ (MSIL)™
system.?

An underwriter's* specific obligations under rule G-36 are
govemned, in part, by whetherthe offeringis subjectto Securities
Exchange Act Rule 15c2-12—the SEC rule that requires the
preparation of a final official statement for most primary offer-
ings of municipal securities. For an offering that is subject to
Rule 15¢2-12, the underwriter must send copies of the official
statement and Forms G-36(0S) within one business day of
receiving the official statement from the issuer, but in no event
laterthan 10 businass days after the date of the final agreement
to purchase, offer or sell the securities.®

Certain primary offerings are notsubjectto Rule 15c2-12and
thus an official statement may not necessarily be prepared. ’

»

These offerings include those under$1 million in par value and’ ‘

those that are specifically exempted under section (c) of Rule
15c2-12. Rule G-36 currently does not apply to anofferingthat
qualifies for an exemption set forth in section (c) of Rule 15c2-
12, regardless of the amount of the offering. For those offerings
under $1 million, which are subject to rule G-36, but not Rule
15c2-12, coples of the official statement and completed Forms
G-36(0S) must be sent to the Board within one business day of

Comments on the draft amendments should be submit-
ted no later than June 1, 1992, and may be directed to
Harold L. Johnson, Deputy General Counsel. Written
comments will be available for public inspection.

1 For purposes of rule G-36, a final official statement is defined as a document or set of documents prepared by an issuer of municipal securities or
its representatives setting forth, among other matters, information concerning the issuer(s) of such municipal securities and the proposed issue of
sacurities that is complete as of the date of the delivery of the document or set of documents to the underwriter.

2 Form G-36(0S) requires certain informaticn necessary for the processing of official statements by the Board.

3 Municipal Securities Information Library and MSIL are trademarks of the Board.

4 For purposes of rule G-36, a broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer acts as an underwritsr when municipal securities are purchased from the
issuer of the securities by or through such broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer {whether the broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer is
acting as principal or agent) as part of a primary offering. Thus, rule G-36 applisstoa broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer acting as an agent
ofthe issuerin a new issue or remarketing, as well as whentaking a principal positionin a newissue offering. ¥ asyndicate orsimilaraccountisformed”
for the underwriting of a primary offering of municipal securities, the managing underwriter is rasponsible to comply with the requirements of rule
G-36 (and certain associated recordkesping requirements in rule G-8) on behalf of the syndicate or similar account.

5 For those primary offerings covered by Rule 15c2-12, that rule, in effect, requires that the final official statement be prepared and given to the
underwriter no later than seven business days aftar the final agresment to purchase, offer or sell the securities.

)
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settlement or closing of the issue. This differs somswhat from
the general requirement of rule G-36 thatthe documents be sent
within 10 business days of the agreement to purchase, offer, or
sell the securities.

Current Scope of Rule G-36

As discussed above, all primary offenngs of municipal secu-
rities currently are sutbject to rule G-36 except for those exempt
under section (c} of Rule 15c2-12. The threg categories of
primary offerings which fall under this exemption are those
offerings of securities, made in authorized denominations of
$100,000 or more, which:

(1) Are sold to no more than thirty-five persons, each
of whom the underwriter believes (i) has such knowl
edge and experience in financial and business mat-
tars that it is capable of evaluating the merits and
risks of tha prospaective investment and (i) is not
purchasing for more than one account or with & view
to distributing the securities (referred to hersin as
*limitad placements"); or

(2) Have a maturity of nine months or less; or

(3) Attheoptionofthe holder thereof may be tendered to
anissuer of such securities or its designated agent
for redemption or purchase at par valus or more
at least as frequently as every nine months until
maturity, earlier redemption, or purchase by an
issuer or its designated agent.®

The Board specifically exempted the above three categories
of offerings from the scope of rule G-36 when the rule was
adopted in 1989. At that time, the Board noted that Rule
15¢2-12 does not require official staternents to be produced for
these offerings. The Board believed that the offical statements
voluntarily prepared for such offerings probably would be of
little interast to market participants. Accordingly, the Board feft
that it was not naecessary to require that any official staternent
prepared for such an offering be sent to the Board for inclusion
in the MSIL system.”

Proposal for Expanded Coverage of Rule G-36

After several years of collecting official statements under rule
G-36 and making those documents available through the Pub-
lic Access Facility of the MSIL system, the Board now believes
that there may be significant interest among market participants
for official statements relating to offerings that are currently
exempt fromrule G-36. Atarecent meeting of the Board's MSIL
Advisory Committee,® several committee members stated that
the Board should ensurethat its collection of official statements
in the MSIL system is as complete as possible. For example,
several members noted that disclosure documents for shori-

term securities, such as those nine momhs or under in matur;
were an imporiant source of disclosure about municipal i lssu-
ers,

The Board is requesting comment on a draft amendment 1o
rule G-36 that would extend the scope of the rule to include two
of the exempted categories of offerings described above,
relating to securities with maturities of nine months orless and
securities with put periods of nine months or less. The draft
amendment would require that, if an official statement is pre-
pared for such an offering, the underwriter must send two
copies of the official statement and two copies of a completad
Form G-36(0S) to the Board. The underwriter would ba re-
quiredto send the documents to the Board within one business
day of setttement or ¢closing of the issue.

The Board notes that primary offerings of shont-term notes
and variable rate demand obligations, which are included inthe
above categories, often arae fairiy large in par value and may, in
some cases, be actively traded in the market. Thearefore, the
Board believes that the official statements for these securities
would have value to market participants and that it may be
appropriate to requirethe documentsto beincludedinthe MSIL
system.* The Board specifically requests comment on this
point and on the importance that market participants attach to
having access to official statements for these instruments,

Limited Placements

it adopted, the draft amendment would have the effect of
requiring underwritars to submit to the Board all official state-
ments that are prepared for primary offerings of municipal
securities, with the one exception of those limited placements
that are exempt from the official staternent requirernent of Rule
15¢2-12. The Board requesis comment on whether official
statements for limited placements, to the extent that such
documents are prepared, should also be required to be sentto
the Board under rule G-36. With respect to this question, the
Board notes that the initial disclosure documents for limited
placements are prepared for a relatively small group of inves-
tors and that the documents often are characterized as "place-
ment memoranda® rather than as "official statements.” Some
additional questions that commentators may wish to address
with respect to limited placernents are:

e Are placement memoranda generally considered to be
the same as official statements?

@ Are placemsnt memoranda gaenerally intended by the
issuer to be made public?

e Do securities from limited placements reappear in the
market at some time after the initial offering? If so,
wouldthe original placement memoranda be useful to
market participants in evaluating the securities?

5 These categories of offerings also are exemptfrom Rule 15¢c2-12. Therefors, an official statement is not always preparedfor all offerings within these

categorles
7 MSRB Reports, Vel. 9, No. 3 (November 1985) at 3-4.

8 The MSIL Adviscry Committee advises the Board on MSIL system operations. Itis composod of 26 individuals, representing a cross-section of
patticipants in the municipal securities market. The Committee met on January 15, 1952, in New York, atwhlch time the scope of rule G-36 was

discussed,

8 Some underwriters now send official statements for these offerings to the Board ona voluntary bula The Board currently enters these voluntary
submitted official statements into the MSIL system and makes them publicly available.
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o Arethereinstancesinwhichthe essentialterms or condi-
fions of the securities in a limied placement are modified
subsequent o the initial offering, for example, with the
consent of the Initial investors? K so, would the place-
ment memorandum for such securities be misleading if
it later is used by market participants in evaluating the
securities?

Impact of Draft Amendment on Scope of Rule A-13

The Board recently made changes in its procedures for
coltacting and accounting for underwriting assessments and in
the offerings subjecttosuch assessmentunder ruleA-13."° The
Board believes that the offerings subject to underwriting as-
sessment under rule A-13 essentially should be the same as
offerings forwhich an official statement is received by the Board
under rule G-36. Each of the offerings for which the Board
receives an official statement is part of the municipal securities
market regulated by the Board. The Board therefore believes
that it may be appropriate for each such offering to share, in an
equitable manner, in the funding of the Boards operations
through the underwriting assessment of rule A-13.

As noted above, if the draft amendment to rule G-36 is
implemented, it would result inthe Board receiving copies of all
official statemenits that are prepared for primary offerings of
municipal securities, with the exception of limited placements.
The Board, at this time, is not planning to Institute underwriting
assessments for primary offerings of securities under nine
months in maturity or remarketings of securities having put

* Underlining indicates new language; strikethrough indicates deletions.

AN

whether official statements for such offerings are received by
the Board under rule G-36. The Board, howevaer, is considering
implemeantation of underwriting assessments for ali other pri-
mary offerings forwhich official statements are received, includ-
ing offerings of securities less than $1 million in par value and
new Issue offerings of securities having put periods of nine
months or less.

Aprill 7, 1992

Text of Amendments*

Rule G-36 Delivery of Officlal Statements, Advanced Re-
funding Documents and Forms G-36(0S) and G-36{(ARD) to
Board or its Designee
(a) through (b) No change.
(c) Delivery Requiremants for Issues not Subject to Securities
Exchange Act Rule 15¢2-12.
() No change.
(i) Thissactionshalinotapplytoprimaryofferingsof munici-
pal securities, regardless of the amount of the issue, if the
issue qualifies for an exemption set forth in paragraph (1)
of saction (c) of Securities Exchange Act rule 15¢2-12(c). |
(d) through (e) No change.

10 Sge, Notice on Underwriting Asssssments on pages 7 through 10 of this issue.

)

_provisions with durations of nine months or less, regardiess of

5
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Transactions in Municipal
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations:
Rule G-15

Interpretation

The Board interprets rule G-15 not to require that a yield
be stated on confirmations for transactions in municipal

. collateralized mortgage obligations, and, if ayleld Is stated,

that the method of calculation also be clearly stated on the
confirmation.

The Board has become aware that some municipal issuers
recently have issued securities that are structured as
collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs). Like the CMOs
issued by non-municipal issusrs, these securities represent
interests in pools of martgages and are partitioned into several
classes (or tranches), which are serialized as to priority for
redemption and payment of principal.

Since these "municipal CMOs" are being issued directly by
political subdivisions, agencies or instrumentalities of state or
local governments, it appears that they may be “municipal
securities,” as that term is defined under section 3(a) (29) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Although theinterest paid on
these instruments may be subject to federal taxation, the Board
reminds dealers that transactions in municipal securities are
subject to Board rules whether those securities are taxable or
tax-exempt. Accordingly, dealers executing transactions in
municipal CMOs should ensurethatthey arein compliance with
all applicable Board rules. For example, dealers should ensure
that all Board requirements regarding professional qualifica-
tions and recordkeeping are observed.?

Because the interest and principal payment features of mu-
nicipal CMOs are very different from those of traditional munici-
pal bonds, dealers should take care to ensure that all Board
rules designed for the protection of customers are observed.

This includes ensuring that: (i) all materia! facts about each
transaction are disclosed to the customer, in compliance with
rula G-17; (i} each transaction recommended 10 a customer is
sultable forthe customer, in compliance with rule G-19; and (ifi)
the price of each customer transaction isfair and reasonabie, in
compliance with rule G-30. With respect to the material facts
that should be disclosed to customers, dealers should ensure
that customers are agequately informed of the likelihood of
“prepayment* of principal on the securities and the likelihood of
the securities being redeemed substantially prior to the stated
maturity date. If the amount of principal that will be delivered to
the customer differs from the "face” amount to be delivered, the
customer also should be informed of this fact, along with the
amount of the principal that will be delivered.

The Board also has reviewed the requirements of rule
G-15(a){i) (1) with respact to confirmation disclosure of “yieldto
maturity® or “yield to call* on customer confirmations in these
securities. Because CMOs typically pay principal to holders
prior to maturity and because the actual duration of the securi-
ties often varies significantly from the stated maturity, the Board
has interpreted rule G-15(a) not to require a statement of yield
for transactions in municipal CMOs. A dealer that decides to
voluntarily include a staternent of "yield" on a confirmation for
these securities must also disclose on the confimation the
method by whichyield was computed. Thiswill helptoavoidthe
possibility of the customer misunderstanding the yield figure if
he should use it to compare the merits of alternative invest-
ments.

The Board will be monitoring municipal CMOs and will adopt
spacific rules for the instruments in the future i this appears to
be nacessary.

Aprl! 8, 1992

Questions about thig notice may be directed to Harold
L. Johnson, Deputy General Counsel.

1 Of courss, whether any instrument is a municipal security is a matter to be determined by the Securities and Exchange Commiasion.
2 |y addition, as noted abave, the interest paid on these instruments may be subject to federal taxation. Kthe securities are identified by the issuer
or sold by the underwriter as subject 1o federal taxation, rules G-12(c) and G-15(a) require confirmations to contain a designation to that effect.
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Disclosure of Remuneration to
Customers: Rule G-15

Amendments Approved

The amendments allow dealers, as an alternative to
confirmation disclosure of the source and amount of remu-
neratlon received from a party other than the customer In
agency transactions, to note on the customer's conflrma-
tion whether any such remuneration has been or will be
received and that the source and amount of such cther
remuneration is available upon written request by the
customer. The amendments do not affect a dealer's obliga-
tion to disclose remuneration (commission) received from

the customer.

On January 16, 1992, the Securities and Exchange Com-
mission approved amendments to rule G-15(a)(i), on dis-
closure of remuneration in agency transactions. The amend-
ments allow dealers, as an alternative fo confirmation discle-
sure of the source and amount of remuneration received from
a party otherthan the customer in agency transactions, 1o note
onthe customers confirmationwhather any such remuneration
has been or will be received and that the source and amount of
such other remuneration is available upon written request by
the customer. The amendments became effective upon ap-
proval by the Commission.

Background

Rule G-15(a)(il) requires a dealer effecting a transaction as
agent for the customer or as agent for both the customer and
another personto note on the customer's confirmation (7) either

1 SEC Reloase No. 34-30259,

the name of the person from whom the securities were pur-
chased orto whom the sacurities were sold for the customer or
a statement that this information will be fumished upon the
request of the customer, and {if) the source and amount of any
commission or other remuneration received or to be received
by the dealer in connection with the transaction.

The Board understands that for certain remarketing agree-
ments, dealers may not be able to disclose the amount of the
remuneration when that amount is not determined at the time of

. trade, Thiscanoccur, forexample, whenthe dealer's remarketing

fee, paid by the issuer, Is based on a percertage of the issue's
outstanding balance instead of on a per transaction basis. The
Board beileves that it is important for the dealer to disclose the
basis of this fee, even if the exact amount is not yet determined.
Thus, the Board has interpreted rule G-15(a) i) to allow dealg(")
to disclose that there will be a fee and the basis of the fee. Fc.

example, the dealerwould haveto disclose afeefromthe issuer
of x% of the outstanding balance of the issue, payable quar-

terly.2

Summary of Amendments

The amendments to rule G-15(a)(ii) allow dealers, as an
alternativeto confirmation disciosure of the scurce and amount
of remuneration received from a party other than the customer
in agency transactions, to note on the customer's confirmation
whether any such remuneration has been or will be received
and that the source and amount of such other remuneration is
available upon written request by the customer. This require-
ment makes the rule consistent with the requirements of SEC
Rule 10b-10, the SEC's confirmation disclosure rule. While Rule
10b-10 does not apply to municipal securities transactions,
consistency with that Rule, whenever possible, is useful for

Questions about the amendmenis may be directed to
Jill C. Finder, Assistant General Counsel.

9,

2 Situstions Invalving both fixed and variable slements to the fee paid by an issuer would require the dealer o disclose the fixed amount as well as

the basis for the variable amount.
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dealers. In order to make rule G-15(a} (i} intermnally consistent,
the amendments also require written requests by customersfor
information regarding the identity of the person from whom the
securitias were purchased orto whom the securities were sold.

January 16, 1892
Text of Amendments”

Rule G-15. Confirmation, Clearance and Settlement of
Transactions with Customers

(a) Customer Confirmations
() No change.
(i) if the broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer is
effecting a transaction as agent for the customer or as
agent for both the customer and another person, the
confirmation shall set forth (A) either the name of tha
person from whom the securities were purchased or to

* Underlining indicates new language; strikethrough indicates deletions.

whom the securities were sold for the customer or a
statement that this information will be furnished upon the
written request of the customer, ane (B) the amount of any
remuneration received or to be raceived by the broker
dealer or municipal securities dealer from the customer in
connection with the transaction unless remuneration paid

the customer is dstermined. pursuant to_a written

agreement with the customer, other than op a transaction
basis, and (C} the source and amount of any eemmissien
ef other remuneration received or to be raceived by the

broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer in connection

with the transaction; provided, however, that the written
notification may state whether any such remuneration has
been or will ba received and that the source and amount of
such other remuneration will be furnished upon written

request of the customer.
(iii) through () No change.

(b) through {e) No change.
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Activities of Financial Advisors:
Rule G-23

Amendments Approved

The amendments require a deater acting as a financial
advisor and placement agent for an issue to meet the same
disclosure and other requirements as a dealer acting as
financlal advisor and negotiating the underwrliting.

OnJanuary 16, 1992, the Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion approved amendments to rule G-23, on activities of finan-
cial advisors.' The amendments require a dealer acting as
financial advisor and placement agent for an issue to mest the
same disclosure and other requirements, set forth in rule
G-23(d), as a dealer acting as financial advisor and negotiating
the underwriting. The amendments became effective upon
approval by the Commission.

Background

Rule G-23 establishes disclosure and other requirements for
dealers that act as financial advisors to issuers of municipal
securities.2 The rule is designed principally to minimize the
prima facie conflict of interest that exists when a municipal
securities dealer acts as both financial advisor and underwriter
with respect to the same issue. Specifically, it requires a
financial advisor to alen the issuer to the potential conflict of
interest that might lead the dealer to act in its own best interest
as underwriter rather than the issuer's best interest.

Among other things, rule G-23 prohibits a dealer acting as
financial advisor from acquiring a negotiated issue as principal,
either alone or in a syndicate, or arranging for such acquisition
by a person controlling, controlled by, or under common
control with such dealer, unless certain reguirernents are met.

1 SEC Release No. 34-30258.

in these instances, rule G-23{d)({) requires the dealer (i) to
terminate the financial advisory relationship with regard to the
issue; (i} at or before such termination, to disclose in writing to
the issuer that there may be a conflict of interest in changing
from the capacity of financial advisor to that of purchaser of the
securities and the source and anticipated amount of alt remu-
neration to the dealer with respect to the issue; (iil) at or after
such termination, to obtain the exprass written consent of the
issuertotheacquisition or participationinthe purchase; and {iv)
to obtain from the issuer a written acknowledgment of the
receipt of these disclosures.

Summary of Amendments

The amendments to rule G-23 require a dealer acting as
financia advisor and placement agent for an issue to meet the .
same requirements, set forth in rule G-23(d), asa dealer acting
as financial advisor and negotiating the underwriting. The
Board believes that thera is effectively no difference betwean
thetwo activities® and the disclosure and other requirements of
rule G-23(d) should apply to minimize the potential conflict of
interest that exists whan a dealer acts as both financial advisor
and placement agent with respect to the same issue. The
amendments do not prohibit a dealer from placing an issue
when itisthefinancial advisor fortheissus, butthe amendments
do require that the dealer terminate the financial advisory
relationship with regard to the issue and make certain disclo-
sures.

The Board has determined that the execution of a placement
agent agreement which sets forth the compensation for the
placement agent will comply with the raquirements of rule
G-23(d)())(C), whichrequiresthe dealerto disclosetothe issuer
the source and anticipated amount of all remuneration to the

Questions about the amendments may be directed to
Ronald W. Smith, Legal Assistant.

2Ryls G-23 doss notapply to ‘independent* financial advisors, i.e., those advisors that are not associated with a broker, dealer ormunicipal securities”

dealer. The rule also deas notapply when, inthe course of acting as an underwriter,

including advice with respect to the structure, timing, terms and other similar matters concerning a new issue of municipal securities.
3 Typically bank dealer financial advisors place issuss of municipal revenue bonds because banking laws prohibit banks from underwriting such

bonds,

D

amunicipal securities cisaler renders financial adviceto anissuer,

—
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dealer with respect to the issuse, in addiion to the basis of
compensation for the financial advisory services rendered. In
addition, the amendments make the customer disclosure pro-
visions of rule G-23(g) applicable to a dealer acting as financia
advisor and placement agent for an issue.

January 16, 1992

Text of Amendments*

Rule G-23 . Activities of Flnanclal Advisors

(@) - (c) No change.

{d) Underwriting Activities. No broker, dealer, or municipal
securities dealer that has a financial advisory relationship with
respect to a new issue of municipal securities shall acquire as
principal either alone or as a participant in a syndicate or other
similar account formed for the purpose of purchasing, directly
or indirectly, from the issuer all or any portion of such issue, or

; g , unless
() i such issue is to be sold by the issuer on a negotiated
basis, ‘
(A) the financial advisory relationship with respect to
such issue has been terminated in writing and at or
after such termination the issuer has expressty con-
serted in writing to such acquisition or participation,
as principal or agent, inthe purchase of the securities
on a negotiated basis;
{B) the broker, dealer, or municipat securities dealer

* Undoerlining indicates new language; strikethrough indicates deletions.

has expressly disclosed in writing to the issuer at or
before such termination that there may be a conflict of
imterest in changing from the capacity of financial
advisor to purchaser of or placement agent for the
securities with respect to which the financial advisory
relationship exists and the issuer has expressly ac-
knowledged in writing to the broker, dealer, or munici-
pal securities dealer receipt of such disclosure; and
(C) the broker, dealer, or municipal securities dealer
has expressly disclesed in writing to the issuer at or
before such termination the source and anticipated
amount of all remuneration 1o the broker, dealer, or
municipal securities dealer with raspect to such issue
in addition to the compensation referred to in section
(¢) of this rule, and the Issuer has expressly acknowl-
edged in writing to the broker, dealer, or municipal
securities deater receipt of such disclosure; or
(i) it such issue is to be sold by the issuer at competitive
bid, the issuer has expressly consented in writing prior to
the bid to such acquisition or participation.
The limitations and requirements set farth in this section (d)
shall also apply to any broker, dealer, or municipal securities
dealer controlling, controlied by, or under common control with
the broker, dealer, or municipal securities dealer having a
financial advisory relationship. The use of the term "indirectty”
in this section (d) shall not preclude a broker, dealer, or munici-
pal securities dealer who has a financial advisory relationship
with respaect to a new issue of municipal securities from pur-
chasing such securities from an underweiter, either for its own
trading account or for the account of customers, except to the
extent that such purchase is made to contravene the purpose
and intent of this rule.
(e) through (h) No change.
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Activities of Financial Advisors: Q: Are all financlal advisors subject to the rule?
- A: The Board's ruies apply only to financial advisors who are
RUIE G 23 registered as brokers, dealers and municipal securities
dealers with the SEC.
Questions and Answers Q: Are financlal advisory services provided to corporate
obligors in connection with IDB financings subject to
Answers to frequently asked questions concerning the rule G-237
ethical standards and disclosure requirements for dealers A: No. Rule G-23 applies to dealers that agree to render
that act as financial advisors to municipal securlties financial advisory servicas to or on behalf of the municipal
issuers. "issuer.”
This is a republication of a 19859 notice describing the
requirements of rule G-23, Questions and answers on the Q: Must afinancial advisory relationship be evidenced by
application of the rule to the recently approved amend- a writing? | o
ments have been added. A: Yes, Each financial advisory relationship must be avi'\)
denced by awriting entered into prior to, upon, or promptly
after the inception of the financial advisory relationship.
Q: Would financlal advisory services furnished to a mu-
FINANCIAL ADVISORY RELATIONSHIPS nicipal district which has not yet been officlally estab-
lished at the inception of the relationship constitute
Q: Whatis the intent of rule G-23 concerning the activities financial advisory services for the purposes of the ruie?
of financlal advisors? A: Yes. Paragraph (c) of the rule contempiates that the rule
A: The intent of this rule is to establish disclosure require- may apply even if tha municipalissuer does not exist at the
ments and standards for dealers that act as financial inception of the financial advisory relationship.
advisors to issuers of municipal securities.
Q: K a dealer has an agreement with an Issuer which
Q: When is a dealer acting as a financlal advisor? provides that the dealer will furnish financlal advisory
A: A dealer advising an issuer with respect to the structure, services from time to time at the issuer's request, does
timing, terms and other similar matters concerning a new a financlal advisory relatlonship exist with respecttoa
issue or issues of municipal securities for a fee or other proposed new issue?
compensation or in expectation of such compensation is A: [If adealer has enterad into a blanket agreement fo render
acting as a financial advisor. financial advisory services, a financial advisory relation-
ship with respect to a particular new issue of securities will
Q: Is adealer acting as a financlal advisor for purposes of be presumed to exist. Whether or not the dealer actually
the rule when it structures a financing while acting as has a tinancial advisory relationship to the new issuais a
an underwriter on a negotiated issue? factual question.
A: No. Afinancial advisory relationship does not exist when,
in the course of acting as an underwriter on a negotiated
issue, a dealer advises an issuer, with respect to the COMPENSATION
structure, timing, terms and other similar matters concern-
ing a new issue of municipal securities. Q:

Must the dealer and issuer enter into a written agree” j

——
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ment regarding the dealer's compensation of g finan-
cial advisory services?

Yes. The agreament must state the basis of compensation
for the financial advisory services, including provisions
relating to the deposit of funds with or the utilization of
fiduciary or agency services offered by such dealer.

Is a financial advisory agreement which states that “the
basis of compensation shall be a fee not to exceed X
dollars" sufficlent?

No. The dealer should specify the fees or commissions it
is charging, not mersly the highest possible amount of
compensation it could receive.

¥ a dealer provides financlal advisory services for afee
and subsequently resigns to negotiate the issue, does
the dealer have to reimburse the Issuer for the fees
received while acting as the financial advisor?

No. Ifthe dealer received these faes for its services during
the pericd it was acting as financial advisor for an issuer it
may retain those fees.

UNDERWRITING ACTIVITIES

Q:

May a financial advisor for a particular lssue underwrite
another lssue for the same Issuer without complying
with the requirements of rule G-23(d)?

Yes. The rule applies only to a dealer that acts in both
capacities with respact to a single issue of securities.
Are there any restrictions on a financial advisor that
wishes to underwrite a negotiated lssue on which It is
a financial advisor?

Yes. Rule G-23(d)}()) requires a financial advisor to:

() terminate the financial advisory refationship, in writ-
ing, and obtain the issuer's express consent to the dealer's
participation in the underwriting.

(b) disclose in writing to the issuer that there may be a
conflict of interest in changing from the capacity offinancial
advisor to underwriter and obtain the issuer's written re-
ceipt of such disclosure; and

(c) disclose to the issuser the source and anticipated
amount of all remuneration to the dealer withrespecttothe
issue in addition to compensation already received as the
financial advisor and obtain the issuer's written receipt of
such disclosure.

If a dealer acts az hoth financlal advisor and placement
agent for 8 new negotiated Issue, does rule G-23(d)
apply?

Yes. Rule G-23(d} requires a dealer acting as financial
advisor and placemertt agent for an issue to meet the same
requirements as a dealer acting as financial advisor and
negotiating the underwriting.

A

When must a financilal advisor obtailn &n Issuer's con-
sent permitting it to underwrhe or place a negotiated
sale?

The consent of the issuer must be obtained "at or attar* the
termination of the financial advisory relationship.

May a financlal advisor to an issuer for several issues
terminate s financlal advisory relationship with the
Issuer only with respect to & speclific negotiated Issue
which It wishes to underwrlte or place?

Yes. Underthese circumstances, the advisory reiationship
may be terminated with respact to the specific negotiated
issue.

Does the execution of a placement agent agreement
which sets forth the compensation for the placement
agentcomply withthe requirements of rule G-23(d) (1) (C),
which requires the dealer to disclose to the issuer the
source and amount of all remuneration to the dealer
with respect to the issue, In addition to the basis of
compensation for the financial advisory services ren-
dered?

Yes.

Must a dealer keep a record of all written agreements,
disclosures, acknowledgments and consents?

Yes. Each dealer must maintain a copy of the written
agreemants, disclosures, acknowledgments and consents
in a separate file and as required by rule G-9.

What requirements must a financlal advisor meet in
order to bid on a competitive issue?

Rule G-23(d) (i) requires the financial advisor to obtain the
expresswritten consent of the issuer priortobidding onthe
issue.

May a financial advisor obtain fromthe issuer prospec-
tive approval to particlpate In future competitive is-
sues?

No. An issuer should have the opportunity to consider
whaether the financial advisor's potential conflict of interest
is sufficient to warrant not consenting to its participation
onthe sale. The Board has concluded that an unrestricted
consent would not afford an issuer such an opportunity
and accordingly such blanket consent is not parmitted.

May a financial advisor reserve the right to bid on
a competitiveissue inthe officlal statement ornotice of
sale?

No, since it is not clear that the issuer has a sufficient
opportunity to determine whether It is in its best interest to
allow its financial advisor to bid on the issue.

Are there any restrictions on a financlal advisor that
wishes to purchase some of the bonds of an Issue in

28
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the secondary market or as a member of a selling
group?

Afinancial advisor is not precluded from purchasing such
securities from an underwriter, either for its own trading
account or for the account of customers, except to the
extent that such purchase is made to contravene the
purpose and intent of this rule.

Do the restrictions in rule G-23(d) apply to a dealer
wishing to act as underwriter for an issue If the dealer
Is a subsidiary or affiliate of another dealerthatls acting
as the financial advisor on the lssue?

Yes. The limitations and requiremsents set forth in section
(d) apply to any dealer “controliing, controlled by, or under
common control with" the dealer having a financial advi-
sory relationship, imespactive of whether or not' the two
dealers are oparating independently.

in circumstances In which the control relationship
between dealers Is not obvlous, how may one deter-
mine K rule G-23(d) applies? For example, if an
Individual Is an officer of both dealers, but there is no
corporate affillation between the dealers, does & con-
trol relationship exist?

The existence of a control relationship is a question of fact
to be determined from the entire situation. The SECnoted,
for purposes of the Regulatory Flexibility Act, that a dealer
would be deemed to be controlled by & person or entity
who, among other things, has the ability to direct or cause
the direction of the managemernit or the policias of the
dealsr. Inthe abova example, if the officer has the authority
to direct the management or formulate the policies of both
dealers, a control relationship may be found to exist.

DISCLOSURE TO ISSUER OF CORPORATE AF-
FILIATION

Q:

f a bank does not have a dealer department but acts as

A:

»

thefinanclal advisortotheissuer, mayits broker-dealer
subsidiary underwrite the issue without complylng with
sectlon (d)7

Rule G-23{d) applies only when the financial advisor and
underwriter for an issue are the same dealer or are two
dealers subjectto a control relationship. Since the bank is
not a dealer, Board rules do not apply. Section (e},
howaevar, requires the dealer to disclose this corporate
affiliation in writing to the issuer prior to the acquisition and
to receive from1he issuer an acknowladgment in writing of
receipt of such disclosure.

DISCLOSURE TO CUSTOMERS

Q:

A:

Al

Does a dealer have t0 disciose his role as financial
advisor of an Issue of which i Is an underwriter or
placement agent to a customer?

Yos. The dealer must disclose the financial advisory
relationship In writing to each customer who purchased
such securities from the dealer.

When should a dealer acting as an underwriter or
placement agent make this disclosure?

Disclosure must be made to the customer at or befi”
completion ofthe transaction. Thus, the disclosure may-.
made in the official statement, the when-issued confirma-
tion or in the final confirmation as long as the customer
receives it bafore compietion of the transaction.

APPLICABILITY OF STATE LAW

Q:

Al

Does the rule supersede a state law which prohibits
financlal advisors from serving as underwriters?
The rule specifically provides that it is not intended to

suparsede any more restrictive provisions of state or local
law concerning the activities of financial advisors.
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Automated Clearance and
Settlement: Rules G-12 and G-15

Comments Requested

The Board has determined to adopt amendments to rules
G-12 and G-15 to require essentlally all Inter-dealer and
institutional customer transactions eligible for processing
in automated clearance and settlement systems to be
processed within the systems. The Board requests com-
ments on an Implementation schedule forthe amendments.

In September 1991, the Board requestad comments on draft
amendments to rules G-12(f) and G-15(d) on automated clear-
ance and settlement of inter-dealer and DVP/RVP customer
transactions. These amendments would eliminate the exemp-
tions that currently allow certain transactions to be processed
outside the automated clearance and settlement systems. Atits
February 1992 meseting, the Board determined to adopt the
amendments with one modification, as described below.

Almost all of the comments raceived on the draft amend-
ments were positive. The Board believes, however, that the
steps necessary for the municipal securities industry to imple-
ment the amendments could be difficult and will require sub-
stantial efforts by dealers, institutional customers, clearing
agents, service bureaus, and registered clearing agencies.
Therefore, the Board believasthat an extended implementation
planis warranted which would phase inthe effectiveness of the
amsendments over an 18-month period. The Board is seeking
industry comment on this plan prior to filing the amendments
with the SEC. Written comments will be accepted until June 1,
1992,

Introduction and Summary of Amendments

Since the adoption of rules G-12({f) and G-15(d) on auto-
mated clearance and setttament of municipal securities trans-

actions in 1983, the Board has monitored the industry’s auto-
mated systems.’ Athough the Board in 1983 provided certain
exemptions from the general requirement to use automated
systerns, it has maintained that, for the market 1o obtain the full
cost savings and efficiencies offered by such systems, it will be
necessary to include essentially all inter-dealer and DVP/RVP
{i.e., institutional) customer transactions within the automated
clearance and settlement systems. Furthermore, the ongoing
planning for implermnentation of the Group of Thirty (G30) goals
in the United States has focused much attention on the lack of
parity between the corporate and municipal securities markets
regarding automated clearance and settlement, and has en-
gendered genergl agreement that inter-dealer and institutional
customer transactions should be cleared and settled through
the automated systems.

As noted above, in September 1991, the Board published a
request for comments on draft amendments to rules G-12(f)
and G-15(d) that would eliminate the exemptions in those rules
that cumently allow certain transactions to be processed out-
side the automated clearance and settlement systems.2 In
general, the amendments would have the following effects:

e All dealers in municipal securities would have to have
access to the automated comparison services offered
by a clearing corporation.

® All inter-dealer transactions would have to be compared
through an automated comparison System unless the
transaction is insligible for automated comparison.

# All dealers would have to have access to the services
of a securities depository which offers automated
confiration/affirmation and book-entry delivery services
for municipal securities transactions. (Access to a

Comments on the draft amendments should be submit-
ted no iater than June 1, 1992, and may be directed to
Harold L. Johnson, Deputy General Coungel or Jill C.
Finder, Assistant General Counsel. Written comments
will be avallable for public inspection.

! See *Autamated Clearance and Settlement in the Municipa) Securities Market: A Report fo the Securities and Exchange Commission® (MSRB 1588).
2 Descriptions of the autornated clearance and settlement systems, rules G-12{) and G-15(d), and the background of the draft amendments were
published along with the exposure draft in the September 1991 issue of MSAS Raports (Vol. 11, No. 3, at pp. 3-9).
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depository can either be by direct membership in the
deposttory or through a clearingagent that is amember.)

e All inter-dealer transactions in depository-eligible se-
curities would have to be settled by book-entry delivery.

@ All dealers would have to ensure that each of their cus-
tomers receiving DVP/RVP privileges has access to a
securities depostory offering confirmation/affirmation
and book-entry settlement services in municipal securi-

ties.

@ All DVP/RVP transactions with customers would have to
be confirmed and affirmed in an automated confirma-
tion/affirmation system operated by a depository un-
less the transaction is ineligible for confirmation/
affirrnation.

e All DVP/RVP customer transactions in depository-
eligible securities would have to be settled by book-
emry delivery.

e Confirmation and seftlement obligations conceming re-
1ail customer transactions, which do not take place on a
DVP/RVP basis, would not be affected by the amend-
ments.

Summary of Comments and Discussion

The Board received sixteen comment letters in response to
the draft amendments. Twelve commentators supported the
amendments, two ware opposed, and two commemtators
addressed a possible modification without specifically sup-
porting or opposing the draft amendments. The twefve com-
mentators supporting the draft amendments include four in-
dustry operations groups, onetrade organization representing
New York clearing house banks, sixdealers, and one bankthat
acts as clearing agent for institutional customers. The two
commentators opposing the draft amendments are securities
firms, and the two commentators that did not express an
opinion also are securities firms,

The Amendmenis Would Increase Efficiencies and
Reduce Costs

The majority of commentators believe that bringing substan-
tially allinter-dealer and institutional customer transactionsinto
the automated clearance and settiement systems would result
in operational efficiencies and provide cost savings to the
industry. They state that the automated systems provide for
more timely and less expensive clearance and settlement than
the physical techniques of mailing paper confirmations and
making physical deliveries of securities. These commentators
note thatthe amendments would eliminate the problems asso-
ciated with physical deliveries, including settlement delays,
operational costs, and general inefficiencies. The industry
operations associations Indicated in their comment letters that
the industry generally is willing 1o make the commitmens
nacessary to implement the amendments. The two commen-
tators opposed to the amendments believe that requiring all
eligible transactions to be cleared and settled in automated
systems could increase the costs and delays experienced
whan a dealer must withdraw securities from a depository to
make physical deliveries to retail customers. One of these
commantators notes that some institutionat customers appar-

ently continueto prefer physical delivery of securities. Basedon
the majority of comments received, however, and the Board's
ongoing monitoring of automated clearance and settlement in
the industry, the Board believes that adopting the amendments
and completing the transition to automated clearance and
sattlement wilt increase efficiencies and reduce costs in the
industry.

An Exception Will be Provided for Certain Purchases
Made by Trustees or issuers to Retire Securities

A number of commentators addressed a possible problem
that may arise under the amendmenis when a trustee makes
purchases toretire sacurities under & sinking fund provision. In
these cases, the trustee needs to obtain physical delivery of
securities to record the certificate numbers of securities pur-
chased prior to calling any additional bonds that may be
necessary to satisfy the sinking fund provision. Thus, these
commentators belleve that the amendments should provide an
exception for such transactions. The Board agrees that an
accommodation should be made in such situations, and has
therefore modified the amendments to provide an exceptionfor
purchases made by trustees or issuers to retire securities.

Inaddition, one commentator believesthat exceptions should
be made in certain other cases, such aswhena cortificate with
amissing coupon is traded, or when securities must be traded
on the basis of certificate numbers, as in the case of certain
callable or pre-refunded securities. The Board understandsthat
certificates with missing coupons generally are not depository
sligible. Inaddition, the Board believes that securities which do
not have CUSIP numbers appropriately assigned to reflect
required trading distinctions generally are not depository eli-
gible. Accordingly, transactions in such certificates would not
besubjecttothe book-entry delivery requirements of the amend-
ments. For example, securities that are callable in order of
certificate number or which are advance refunded by certificate
number generally are depository eligible only f CUSIP numbers
have been assigned toreflectthese distinctions. One commen-
tator suggests that industry efforts should be undertaken to
ensure that new CUSIP numbers are assigned whenever such
numbers are needed to establish depository eligibility. In this
regard, the Board notes that since 1985, rule G-34 has required
the underwriter of an advance refunding issue 10 obtain new
CUSIP numbers for the refunded issue when this is nacessary
to reflect differences within the refunded issue created by the
advance refunding. Thus, the Board believes that issues
refunded after 1985 generally are depository eligible.

The Amendments Will Not Require that Underwriters
Make All New lssues Depository Eligible at Inttial
Issuance

Six commentators support the general concept of making all
new issues depository eligible at initial issuance. However, a
number of commentators are concerned about the cost asso-
ciated with making small issues depository eligible at issuance
and making the initial distribution of the issue by book-entry
delivery. The Board believes {hat, at this time, such economic
considerations militate against its adoption of a requirement to
make all new municipal securities issues depository eligible at
Initial issuance.
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Access and Use of Book-Entry Delivery Services

Two commantators note that ali of their customers receiving
DVP/RVP privileges now have access o a depository and,
therefore, the amendments would not impose any additional
requirementsinthis respect. Two other commentators notethat
most of thelr institutional customers inave access to deposktory
services, and that access could be easily obtained by other
institutional customers that do not currently have such access.
One commentator states that some institutional customers
prefer to take physical delivery.

Based on discussions with brokers and dealers, the Board
pelieves that physical deliveries of deposhory-eligible securi-
tias account for a very small number of setilements in the inter-
dealer market. With respect to DVP/RVP custorner transac-
tions, however, the comment letters indicate that there are soma
customers that currently do not use, and may not have access
to, book-entry delivery services. In such cases, securities are
belng delivered by messenger or are drafted egeinst payment.
The amendments would, in effact, requirethat these institutional
customers jain a depository directly or make appropriate ar-
rangements with a clearing agent who would provide deposi-
tory access tothe customer. If these customers still wished to
obtain physical securlties, they could do so by withdrawing the
securities from the depository, either directly or through a
clearing agent.

institutional Customer Transactions that are Not Con-
firmed/Affirmed In an Automated System May Present an
Obstacle to Successful implementation of the Amend-
ments

One commentator that acts as clearing agent and custodian
for institutional customers believas that increased use of the
automated confirmation/affirmation systems would help elimi-
nate the settiement delays that sometimaes occurin institutional
customer transactions. However, another commentator states
that some institutional customers do not participate in an
automated confirmation/affirmation system, andthatthese cus-
tomers may have little incentive to use such asystem since their
transactions normally settie on time. :

The Board is aware that some institutional customers cur-
rently settle transactions by book-entry, but do not participate in
an automated confimation/affirmation system.® The Board
notes that rule G-15(d) currently requires a dealer to use an
automated confirmation/affirnation system whenever a de-
pository is used to settie a transaction.

Concluslon

Based on the comments recelved and the Board's ongoing
monitoring of automated clearance and settlement, the Board
believes that the industry should continue its transition towards
an automated environment for the clearance and settlement of
municipal securities transactions. Therefore, the Board has

determined to adopt the draft amendments, with one modifica-
tion: the amendments will exempt purchases made by trustees
or issuers to retire securities,

The Board beliaves that substantially all dealers now have
access to, and are capable of using, automated systems either
directly or through clearing agents. The Board understands,
howaever, that the participation in automated systems by institu-

‘tional customers is less complete athough most institutional

customers currently have access to book-entry delivery ser-
vices. The Boardalsois awarethat registered clearing agencies
are reviewing potential revisions in the operations of the auto-
mated comparisonandconfirnation/affirmationsystems. There-
fore, the Board belisves that it would be appropriateto phasein
the amendments over an 18-month period, allowing the indus-
try first to focus on settlement of inter-dealer transactions, and
thentotumits attentionto areas that may require more intensive
impiamentation effoits.

Request for Comments

The Board is proposingthe following implementation sched-
ule for the amendments:

January 1, 1993: Imer-dealertransactions in depository-sli-
R gible securities must be settied by book-
entry delivery.
DVP/RVP customer transactions in ds-
pository-sligible securities must be settled
by book-entry delivary, with the exception
of purchases by issuers or trusteesto
retire securities;

and

inter-dealer transactions eligible for auto-
mated comparison must be comparedin
the automated system.

DVP/RVP customer transactions eligible
for automated confirmation/affirmation
must be confirmed/affirmed in an auto-
mated system,

The Board requests comment on the timeframe outlined in

the implementation plan and whether additional factors should
be considerad in the implementation schedule.

July 1, 1993:

July 1, 1994:

Aprilt 7, 1992

Text of Draft Amendments*

Rule G-12. Unlform Practice

{a) through {e) no changes.
(D Use of Automated Comparison, Clearance, and Settlement

3 The Board has discussed with the Depositoty Trust Company (DTC) the apparently substantial number of book-entry deliveries occurring at DTC
that cannot be matched with any automated confirmation or inter-dealer comparison, or otherwise accounted for as a customer account transfer,
raclamation, stc. The Board believes that most of these deliveries rapresent institutional customer transactions that were not processed in an
automnated confirmation/affirmation system, but that nevertheless settled by book-antry.

* Underlining indicates new language; strikethrough indicates deletions.
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ments of this paragraph (if) if the transaction is ineligible for
settlement at all such depositories with which such ar-

{g) through () no changes.

Rule G-15. Confirmation, Clearance and Settlement of
Transactlons with Customers

(a) through (¢} no changes.

(d) Delivery/Receipt vs. Payment Transactions.

this rule, a transaction eligible for automated trade com-
parison through the facilities of a clearing agency ragis-
tered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (reg-
istered clearing agency) shall be compared through a
registered clearing agency. Each party {0 such atransac-

tion shall submit or cause to be submitted to a registered
clearing agency all information and instructions required

from the party by the registered clearing agency for auto-
mated comparison of thetransactionto occur. Inthe event
thatatransaction submittedto aregistered clearingagency
for comparisonin accordance with the requirements ofthis
paragraph (i) shall fail to compare, the party submitting
such transaction shall use the post-original-comparison
procedures provided by the reqistered clearing agency in
connaction with such transaction until such time as the
transaction is compared or final notification of a failure to
compare the transaction is raceived from the contra-party,

(il Notwithstanding the provisiens of section (e) ofthis rule,
a transaction sligible for book-entry settlement at a securi-
ties depository registered withthe Securities and Exchange
Commission {depository} shall be setiled book-ent

through the facilities of a depository or through the inter-
face between two depositories. Each party to such a
transaction shall submit or cause to be submitted to a
depository all information and ingtructions required from
the party by the depository for book-entry settiement of the
transaction to occur; provided that, if a party to a transac-
tion has made arrangements, through its clearing agent or
otherwige, to use one or more depositories exclusively, a
transaction by that party shall not be subject to the require-

{i} no change.

{ii) Except as provided in this paragraph, no broker, dealer
or municipal securities dealer shall effect a customer trans-
action for settlement on a delivery vs. payment or receipt
vs. payment (DVP/RVP) basis unless the facilties of a

clearing agency reqistered with the Securities and Ex-
change Commission {reqistered clearing agency) are used

for automated confirmation and affirmation of the transac-
tion. Each broker, dealer and municipal securities dealer
executing a customer transaction on a DVP/RVP basis
shall; (A) ensurethatthe customer has the capability, either
directly orthrough its clearing agent, to affirm transactions
in an automated confirmation/affirmation system cperated

a registered clearing agency; and (B) submit or cause
to be submitted to a registered clearing agency allinforma-
tion_and. instructions required by the registered clearing
agency for the production of a confirmation that can be
affirmed by the custorner orthé customers clearing agent;
provided thatatransactionthatis not eligiblefor automated
confirmation and _affirmation through the facilities of a
reqistered clearing agency shall not be subject to this
paragraph (ii).
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(lli1 Natwithstandlng tha growsmns of sectlon {c) uf thls

rule, no broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer sha

effect a delivery vs. payment or receipt vs. payment (DVP/
RVP) customer transaction that is eligible for book-entry
settlement in a depository reqistered with the Securities
and Exchange Gommission (depository) unless the trans-
action is settled through the facilities of a_depository or

through the interface between two depositories. Each
broker, dealer and municipal securities dealer settlingsuch

a customer transaction on a DVP/RVP basis shall: {A)

ensure that the customer has the capability, either directly
or through its ciearing agent, to settle transactions in a
depository; and (B) submit or cause to be submitted 10 a
depository all information and instructions required from
the broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer by the -
depository for book-entry settlement of the transaction to
occeur; provided that, if a party to a DVP/RVP customer
transaction has made arrangements, through its clearing
agent or otherwise, to use one or more depositories exclu-
sively, atransaction by that party shall not be subjecttothe
requiraments of this paragraph (i) if the transaction is
ineligible for settlement at all such depositorias with which
such arangements have been madsa; and further provided
that purchases made by trustases Qr jssuers 1o retire secu-
riies shall not be subject to this paraqraph (ii).

{e) no change.
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Open Inter-Dealer Transactions:
Rule Gf1 2

comments Requested

The Board requests comments on whether subastantial
numbers of open Inter-dealer transactions exist and, Iif so,
suggestions as to possible actions the Board might take to
address this problem, including whether the Board should
() amend lts 90-cay rule; (I} adopt a provision for the
mandatory acceptance of partial deliveries of securlties;
(1iy adopt a provision giving selling dealers the right to
close out transactlons; and (iv) require dealers to notify
thelr customers when securities have not been reduced to
possession or control.

Ovar the years, dealers have alerted the Board to possible
problems associated with closing-out open inter-dealer trans-
actions. The Board is reviewing the application of its close-out
rules, and is seeking industry commant on whether open inter-
dealer transactions are a widespread problem, and whether
there are remedial measures the Board can take to facilitate
timely resofution of these transactions.

The Board is concernad that some opentransactions are not
being resolved as quickly aswould be desirable. Recentfigures
provided to the Board by the National Securities Clearing
Corporation (NSCC) as part of its RECAPS program' indicate
that some firms have a significant number of opentransactions
that are over 90-days old. NSCC's figures, howevaer, indicateto
the Board that this problem may be concentrated among a few
firms.

Board Rules Governing Close-Outs

Rule G-12{h) provides a procedure to be used by dealers in
closing out open inter-dealer transactions. The rule allows the

purchasing dealer to issue a notice of ctose-out to the selliing
dealer on any business day from five to 80 business days after
the scheduled settiement date.? If the selling dealer does not
deliver the securities owed on 1he transaction within 10 busi-
ness days after receipt of the close-out notice (15 business
days for retransmitied notices), then the purchasing dealer may
execute a close-out procedure using one of three options: (i)
buy identical securities Inthe market forthe account and liability
of the seller (a "buy-in"); (i) agree with the Selling dealer to
accept substitute securities (a "substitution”); or (ji)) require the
selling dealerto repurchase the securities (a"mandatory reput-
chase"). The selling dealer, which is failing to deliver, bears the
risk of any Increase in the market value of the securities.

The purchasing dealer is not required to initiate a close-out,
or to execute a close-out notice that it has Initiated. And the
selling dealer doas not have a right to force a close-out of the
transaction. if the purchasing dealer chooses not to initiate a

close-out within 90 business days of the settiement date (and

ultimately execute it}, then that dealer loses its right to use the
Board's close-out rules, and the transaction remains open urtit
it is resolved by agreement of the parties or through arbitration.
During this period, the selling dealer again Is subject to market
risk for any increase in the price of the securities, and may be
subject to adverse net capital treatment on the open transac-
tion.*

The Board providad tha close-out options of substitution and
mandatory repurchase because municipal securitias issues
often are not available for a buy-in within a reasonable period of
time. In addition, the Board adopted the 90-day time limit for

Comments on the matters discussed in this notice
should be submitted no later than June 1, 1992, and
may be directed to Jill C. Finder, Assistant General
Counsel. Written comments will be available for
public inspection. '

11n NSCC's RECAPS program, dealers acknowledge or “reconfirm* their open transactions through NSCC on a quarterly basis, mark the transactions
to the mark, and receive new settisment dates for purposes of the SEC's net capital rutes. This reduces the dealer's net capital daductions for *aged"
failed transactions, but doss not resolve the open transaction. The cealar must continus to kesp the fransaction open and use the original contract
settlement datefor ptirposes of the 90-day limiton close-outs. RepeatRECAPS provides statistics on previously submitiedfails formunicipal securities,

and in June 1991, this figure was 33,7%, with a par value of $12.5 million.
2The purchasing dealer also may initiate a close-out within 15 business days after a reclamation made under ruls @-12(g) {lil} (C) or G-12(gNIIH (D),

even though more than 90 business days have elapsed since the criginal settiement date.
3 For example, i the purchasing dealer executes a buy-in or a mandatory repurchasa in a rising market, the selling dealer is liable for the increase
i the market value of the securities. The seliing dealer must pay any monles owed on a close-out within 10 business days of execution of the close-

out.

4 Securities firms (but not banks) are subject to capital charges for municipal securities fail-to-deliver iems over 20 business days old.

2
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close-outs to encourage dealers to resolve open transactions
within this time frame. Both tha Board and the SEC have been
concerned about the prompt resolution of open transactions
because of the risks associated with long-term failed transac-
tions. The SEC has, in the past, expressed concern over the
amount of time Board rules allow for closing out open transac-
tions, and has urged the Board to shorten such periods to
facilitate prompt resolution of open transactions.

The 90-Day Limit on Initiating Close-Outs

Over the years, several industry commentators have urged
the Board to consider lengthening or eliminating the 80-day
rule. These commentators noted that securities may become
available in the market after expiration of tha 90-day pariod, but
that the Board's close-out procedures curmrently are not avail-
able to the purchasing dealer after that period.

The Board understands that specific issues of municipal
securities are not always available in the market and, therefore,
a buy-in may not be immediately possible. In some shuations,
the sacurities are unlikely to ever appear inthe market. In such
acase, the purchasing dealer may always executeamandatory
repurchase within the 80-day period to resolve the inter-dealer
transaction. However, a purchasing dealer may have an offset-
ting transaction with a customer, and while a mandatory rTepur-
chase would aliminate the fail-to-receive from the purchasing
dealers books, it would not resolve the dealers obligations to
the customer.

Some dealers may be reluctant to approach their customers
and inform them that securitiss purchased by the customer
cannot be obtained. Nevertheless, the Board belisves that itis
critical for dealers inthese cases to contacttheir customers and
attampt to resolve the problem with a proposed substitution or
repurchase by the dealer. It is not appropriate fora purchasing
daaler, under the guise of waiting for a buy-in opportunity 1o
appear, simply toallow atransaction toremain open indefinitely
or until maturity of the security.

in 1986, the Board requested comments on its close-out
rules, including whether it should change or eliminate the 90-

day rule. Based onthe comments received, the Board deter-

mined that no rilemaking was necessary. Recently, however,
the Board again has received comments from industry partici-
pants suggesting that the 90-day rule may not be totally effec-
tive as an incentive to resolving open transactions. However,
because of the need to resolve open transactions quickly, the
Board does net belleve that it would be appropriate to eliminate
the 90-day rule without providing some other incentive for
dealers to resolve open transactions quickly, espacially in
those cases in which a buy-in is not feasible bacause the
securities are not available in the market,

Partial Deliveries

One industry commentator, the Regiona! Municipal Opera-
tions Assoclation (RMOA), has suggested that the total number
of failed transactions might be reducad if a dealer that initiates
a close-out is required to accept a partial delivery.® The RMOA
believes that partial deliveries would help dealers fulfill centain
obligations, such as reducing fully-paid customer securities to
possession or control, pursuant to SEC Rule 15¢3-3(dd).” The
RMOA also believes that mandatory acceptance of partial
deliveries would not disadvantage any dealer since only a
dealer choosing to initiate a close-out would bear the risk of
being unable to redetiver the securities if that dealer had an
offsetting transaction with a customer.

Request for Commenis

The Board requasts comment on whether its close-out rules
should provida for the mandatory acceptance of partial deliver-
ies of securities for dealers that initiate close-outs.

The Board also specifically requests comment on the follow-
ing:

e The nature and extent of problems associated with

open inter-clealer transactions, inciuding those that
remain open for over 90 business days.

® Whether the 90-day rule should be eliminated, short-
ened, or lengthened.

e The methods currently used by selling dealerstoresolve
open transactions, and whether these methods gener-
ally are successful.

® Whether Board rules should allow the selling dealer
to force a close-out of the transaction, for example,
througha repurchase by the seller for a short period
of time following expiration of the 90-day period.

® Whether, as a means of encouraging dealers to resolve
opentransactions with customers quickly, dealers should
be required to give a notice to their customers if securi-
ties have not been reduced to possession or control after
a certain number of days, '

The Board will continue to review open transactions in mu-
nicipal securities, and will carefully review all comment letters
received as part of this ongoing process. If the Board deter-
mines that action is warranted in this area, it will consider
rulemaking and also may initiate discussions with the SECto
examine whether current SEC customer protection and net
capital rules adequately address open transactions in munici-
pal securities.

AprH 7, 1982

5 The purchasing dealer may, of course, buy the securities without availing itself of the Board's close-out procedures. if this results in a loss, then

the purchasing dealer can seek compensation from the selling dealer,
8 Currently, underrule G-12(e), a purchasing dealer isnotrequired toaccept
amendmentthatwould have providecforthe mandatory acceptance of parti

and if unsuccessful, initiste an arbitration,
apartial delivery. In 1983, the Board reqjuested commentson a proposed
al detiveries by dealers. Asubstantial majority of commentaiors opposed

this provision largely because of concern that it would create financing costs for dealers who would be forced to accept partial deliveries, but who

would be unable to make their customers accept partial deliveries.

7 SEC Rule 15¢3-3{d) requires that if a broker or dealer has fully-paid securities on its books or records which are listed as failed to receive for more

than 30 calendar days, then the broker or dealer must take prompt steps to obtain possession or control of such securities.



_—

&

volume 12, Number 1

: Ve i

REPOR

TS
April 1892

Route to: - ®
Manager,MuniDept
Underwrit

professional Qualifications:
Rule G-3

Amendments Fited

The amendments revise the organization of the rule and
deiete the references to the "grandfathering® provisions.

On March 3, 1992, the Board filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission amendments to rule G-3, on profes-
sional qualifications, which revise the organization of the rule to
clarify its raquirements and delete the reference to the
grandfathering® provisions.! The Board has asked that the
Commiission delay the effectiveness of the amendments for 90
days after Commission approval.

Background

Board rulas set minimum qualification standards for dealers
and their associated persons. Under rule G-2, on standards of
professional qualifications, every dealer must meet profes-
sional qualification standards before effecting any transaction
in municipal securities. Rule G-2 also is applicable to every
associated person of the dealer who will engage in municipal
securities activities, The application of the professional qualifi-
cation standards is delineated in rule G-3. Specifically, rule
G-3

¢ prescribes qualification examinations or, in special cir-
cumstances, providas for waiver of an examination;

@ raquires a dealer to have a certain number of munici-
pal securities principals and financia! and operations
principals to ensure that its activities in municipal secu-
rities are being adequately supervised; and

@ requires that a candidate entering the municipal securi-
ties industry for the first time as a representative serve
an apprenticeship of at least 90 days.

Reorganization of Rule G-3

The Board has defined four categories of associated per-
sons: municipal securities representative, municipal securities
principal, municipal securities sales principal and financial and
operations principal. Each of these categories has its own set
of standards and qualification requirements to maintain those
standards. Rule G-3 requires that municipal securities profes-

sionals take and pass examinations prior to being qualified to
engage in municipal securities reprasentative activities or to
supervise municipal securities activities as principals.

Rule G-3 currently Is arranged by the definitions of the four
categories of associated persons; numerical requirements for
municipal securities principals and financial and operations
principals; the qualification requirements of the four categories
of associated persons; provisions conceming the confidentiai-
ity of the qualification requirements; provisions concaming the
retaking of qualification examinations; and provisions concem-
ing employment (relating to the apprenticeship of municipal
securities representatives).

The proposed rule change revisesthe organization ofthe ruls
into the following headings:

(&) Municipal Securities Represemative
(il Definition
(i) Qualification Requiremeants
(i) Apprenticeship
(b) Municipal Securities Principal
() - Definition
(i) Qualification Requirements
(i) Numerical Requirements
() Municipal Sacurities Sales Principal
() Definition
(i) Qualification Requirements
(d) Financial and Operations Principal
() Definition
(i) Qualification Requirements
(i) Numerical Requirements
(8) Confidentiality of Qualification Examinations
() Retaking of Qualification Examinations
{g) Waiver of Qualification Requirernents

The reorganization of rule G-3 seeks to makethe prasentation
of the rule's requiremants more understandable. The defini-
tions, qualification requirements, and numerical and appran-
ticeship requirements, if applicable, have bean brought under
the major headings of each category of assoclated person. In
reorganizing the rule's presentation, no additional qualification

Questions about the amendments may be directed to
Ronald W. Smith, Legal Assistant. i

9

¥ SEC File No. SR-MSRB-92-2. Comments filad with the Commission should refer to the file number.
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requirements have been placed in the rule.

Other than the revisions discussed below, no substantive
changes were made to the definitions, qualification require-
ments or numerical requirements. The saction on qualification
reguirements for municipal securities sales principals was re-
vised to reflect that the General Securities Sales Supearvisor
Qualification Examination isthe appropriate examination desig-
nated by the Board for qualification in this associated person
category.

Numerical Requirements

Rule G-3(b) currently contains the numerical requirements
for municipal securities principals and financial and operations
principals. Tha numerical requiremeants for municipal securities
principals have been placed in revised section (b) with the
definition and qualification requirements of municipal securities
principals. The minimum number of municipal securities prin-
cipals required to be associated with a dealer engaging in a
municipal securities business are:

o AnNASD-memberfirmwhich conducts ageneral securit-
ies business is required to have at least one municipal
securities principal;

# A dealer which has fewer than eleven associated per-
sons employed in any capacity on a ful-ime basis
must also have at least one municipal securities princi-
‘pal; and

e All other dealsrs must have at least two municipal secu-
rities principals.

The numerical requirement for financial and operations prin-
¢ipals has been placed in revised section (d) with the definition
and qualification requirernents of financial and operations prin-
cipals. Every dealer, except for bank dealers and “introducing
brokers”, is required to have at least one associated person, its
chief financial officar, qualified as & financial and operations
principal. The individual with the policy-raking authority forthe
processing and clearance of municipal securities for a bank
dealer is required to qualify as a municipal securities principal.
The numerical requirement for financial and operations princi-
pals also does not apply to dealers which function solely as
“introducing brokers.”

No substantive changes were made to the provisions on
numerical requirements.

Apprenticeship

Rule G-3(i}, on employment, currently contains a description
of the 90-day apprenticeship period. An individual who first
becomes associated with a dealer in a representative capacity
{whether as a municipal securities representative or general
securities representative) and who has not previously qualified
as a municipal securities representative or general securities
representative must complete a period of apprenticeship. In
revised rule G-3, the requirements of this section have been
placed in section {a) along with the definition and qualification
requirements of municipal securities representatives. In addi-

tion, language has been added to the rule to clarify that prior
experience, of at Ieast 90 days, as a general securities represen-
tative, mutual fund salesperson or govemment securities repre-
santative would fulfil the apprenticeship requirement. After the
apprenticeship requirement has been fulfilled once, it need not
ba served again in a qualification renewal.

Confidentiality of Quallfication Examinations and Retak-
Ing of Quallfication Examinations

Revised sections (e), on confidentiality of the qualification
examinations, and (f), on retaking of qualification examinations,
have not heen substantively revised. Section (e) sets forth strict
prohibitions of activities that would compromise the confiden-
tial nature of a Board examination or its purpose as atest of an
individual's professional qualifications. Section (f) imposes
spacifiad time periods before an individual may retake a failed
examination. There is no provision in the rule which allows
these time period restrictions to ba waived under any circum-
stances. :

A qualification examination taken in contravention of revised
saction (f) not only violates this provision of the rule, but also is
invalid for purposes of mesting the examination requirements of
the rule. Thus, an individual who sits for an examination within
30 days of afailed first or second examination attempt (or within
six months of the third and all subsequent faiiures) does not
become qualified by means ofthat reexamination, regardiess of
the test score achieved. in addition, an individual may not take
the Municipal Securities Principal Qualification Examination
(Test Series 53) without mesting certain prerequisites of the
rule2 The Series 53 examination taken in violation of the
prerequisite raquirements is null and void and consequently
does not meet the qualification requirement for a municipal
sacurities principal.

At this time, tha Board also would like to remind dealers that
only associated persons of dealers are allowed to take the
qualification examinations prescribed by the Board.

Walver of Qualification Requirements

A new section (g), on waiver of qualification requirements,
has been added to the rule. This section contains the same
provisions as the current rule G-3; revised section (g) simply
presents underone heading the waiver provisions applicableto
the four associated person qualification examinations and the
apprenticeship period for municipal securities representatives
as currently contained in various sections throughout the rule.

Thewaiver exemptionis granted only inextraordinary circum-
stances-it is not a means to circumvent the intent and spirit of
the examination or the apprenticeship requirement. For the
most par, the Board expects that a candidate demonstrate
competence by examination. The decision to grant a waiver
request is made by the appropriate regulatory body which has
jurisdiction over the dealer-either the NASD or the three federal
bank regulatory agencies. Waiver requests are made directiyto
the organization which regulates the applicant's dealer.

Q

2 Anindividual must be qualified as a municipal securitios repraseniative or a general securities rapresentative or have atleast passed the qualification
examinations for either of these two categories before becoming qualified as a municipal securities principal. The same prerequisite requirements
hold true for anyone sesaking qualification as @ municipal securities sales principal.
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Deletion of *Grandfathering* Provislons

Individuals seeking to qualify at this time in any of the four
categories of associated persons &re requiredto take gualifica-
tion examinations or obtain a waiver from the qualification
requirements. For a period of time following the development
of the qualification rules and their implementation, certain in-
dustry professionals became qualified as municipal securities
representatives or municipal securities principals based on
designated qualification credentials in a specified area at a
spacifiad time. Qualification through this means is known as
*grandfathering.* :

An individual may have qualified as a municipal securities
repressnitative by "grandfathering® if one or more of the follow-
ing criteria had baen met:

e The Individual was functioning as a municipal se-
curities represemtative on December 1, 1975, and
continuously functioned inthis capacity through July 14,
1978;

e The individual was qualified as a general securities
representative or a general securities principal by the
NASD onJuly 14, 1978;

o Theindividualwas qualified in a general securities super-
visory capacity (branch manager or allied membear) with
a national securities exchange on July 14, 1978;

¢ The individual was associated with a SECO firm as
a qualified general securities representative or principal
on July 14, 1978; or

» The individual bagan functioning as a municipal securi-
ties representative after December 1, 1975; was qualified
at that time as a general securities rapresentative or
principal or ina general securities supervisory capacity
(each as above); and continuously functioned as a
municipal securities representative from that time until
July 14, 1978.

An individual may have qualified as a municipal securities
principal by "grandfathering” if one or more of the following
criteria had been met:

¢ The individual was functioning as a municipal sec-
urities principal on Decamber 1, 1975, and continu-
ously functioned in this capacity through November 28,
1979;

e The individual was qualified as a general securities
principal with the NASD on November 28, 1979;

e Theindividual was qualified in a general securities super-
visory capacity (branch manager or allied member) with
a national securities exchange on November 28, 1979,

¢ Theindividual was associated witha SECO firm and was
qualified as ageneral securities principalwiththe SEC on
November 28, 1979; or

e The individual bagan functioning as a municipal securi-
ties principal after December 1, 1975; was qualified at
the time as a general securities principal or inagen-
eral securities suparvisory capacity; and continu-
ously functioned as a municipal securities principal
from that time until November 28, 1979.

The amendments clarify and simplify the qualification reQ
quirements of rule G-3 by removing the references to the
*grandfathering" provisions. The "grandfathering” provisions
are no longer relevant to anyone seeking to qualify as a
municipal securities principal or municipal securities represen-
tative at this time. The amendment to delete from the rule
languags the cut-off dates applicable to the "grandfathering"
provisions does not affect the qualification status of those
individuals who have qualified as municipal securities princi-
pals or municipal securities representatives through
*"grandfathering.”

Qualification through "grandfathering” does not meanthat an
individual is always qualified in a particular category. A munici-
pal securities representative ceasing to be an associated per-
son with a dealer for two years or more Joses his or her
qualification stalus as a municipal securities representative. A
municipal securities principal ceasing to supervise in his or her
area of rasponsibility for two years or more loses qualification
status as a municipal securities principal. In 1985, the Board
clarified that the definition of a municipal securities principal
relates only to an associated person of a dsaler that is in
compliance with rule A-12.2 Therefore, rule G-3 requires that a
person be assoclated with a dealer in compliance with rule A-12
in order to be considered as acting as a municipal securities
principal. After two years of association with a dealer not in
compliance with rule A-12, an individual would no longer be
qualified as a municipal securities principal.

Individuals are urged to ensure that their qualification regis-
trations are accurately reflected intheir registration records wit.
the regulatory agencies. The Board has requested that the
Commission delay the effective date of the amendments for a
period of 90 days after Commission approval. This will allow
adequatetimeforindividuals toverify their qualification registra-
tions with the appropriate regulatory agencies to ensure that
their noted registrations are accurate, particularly those indi-
viduals who have baen acting as municipal securities principals
or municipal securities representatives with the belief that their
records indicate they were "grandfathered" as such.

March 3, 1892

Text of Amendments*
Rule G-3. Ciasslification of Principals and Representatives;
Numerical Requirements; Testing

No muniolpal-eaeeuriies broker,_dealsr or municipal securities
dealer or person who is a municipat sacurities representative,
municipal securities principal-finenoia-end-operations-princk
pel-muanicipatseouritiosfepresentative-of municipal securities
sales principal or financial and operations principal {as hereaf-
ter defined) shall be qualified for purposes of rule G-2 unless
such munioipatsesuritiea broker, dealer or municipal securities
dealer or person meets the requirements of this rule.

(e through-i

(a) Municipal Securities Representafive.
(i) Definition. Theterm *municipal securities representative*
means a natural person associated with a broker, dealer or

{,

3 Rule A-12 requires a dealer to submit cestain identifying information to the Board along with payment of a $100 initial fee prior to effecting any

transactions in municipal securities.

* Undetlining indicates new language; strikethrough indicates delstions,
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municipal securities dealer, other than a person whose
functions are solely clerical or ministerial, whose activities

include one or more of the following:
{A) underwriting, trading or sales of municipal securi-
ties;
(B) financial advisory or consultant services for is-
suers in_connection with the issuance of municipal
securities;
{C) research or investment advice with respect to
municipal securities; or
(D) any other aclivities which involve communica-
tion, directly or indirectly, with public investors in
municipal securities;

provided, however, that the activities enumerated in

subparagraphs (C) and (D) above shall be limited to such
activities_as they relate to the activities enumerated in

subparagraphs (A) and {B) above,

(i Qualification Requirements.

(A) Except _as_otherwise provided in this paragraph
a)(il), every municipal securities represantative shall
take and passthe Municipal Securities Representative
ualification Examination prior to being qualified as a
municipal securities representative. The passing grade
shall be determined by the Board.
(B) The reguirements of subparagraph (a) (i) (A) of this
rule shall nota to any person who s duly qualified
as a general securities representative by reason of
having taken and passed the General Securities Reg-
istered Representative Examination.
{C) Any person who ceasss to be associated with a
broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer (whether
as amunicipal securities representative or otherwise)
for two or more years at any time after having qualified
2s_a municipal securities representative in_accor-
dance with subparaqgraphs (a) (i) (A) or {B) shall again
meet the reguirements of subparagraphs (a) (ii}(A} or

B} prior to being qualified as & municipal securities
representative.

(iii} Apprenticeship. .

(A} Any person who first becomes associated with a
broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer in a rep-
resentative capacity {whether as a municipal securi-
ties_representative_or genseral_securities representa-
tive) without having previously qualified as a munici-
pal securities reprasentative or genaral securities rep-
resentative shall be permitted to function in & repre-
sentative _capacity without qualifying pursuant to
subparagraphs (a)(i} (A} or {B) for a period of at Isast
90 _days following the date such person becomes
associated with a broker, deater or municipal securi-
ties dealsr, provided, hewever, that such person shall
not transact business with any member of the pubiic
withrespectto, or be compensated fortransactionsin,
municipal sacurities during such 90 day period, re-
gardless of such person's having qualified in accor-
dance with the examination requirements of this rule.
A person subjectto therequirements of this paragraph

—

(a){ii)) shall in no event continue to perform any of the
functions of a municipal securities representative afier

180 days following the commencement of such
rsons association with such broker, dealer or my.

nicipal securities dealer, unless such parson qualifies

as a municipal securities representative pursuant to
subparagraphs (a)(i){A) or (B).

B) Prior experience, of at least 90 days, as a general
securities representative, mutual fund salesparson or

govermnment securities representative, will meet the
requirements of this paragraph (a)(ii).

{b) Municipal Securities Principal.

Definition. The term *municipal securities principal

means a natural person (other than a municipal securitias
sales principal}, asgociated witha broker, dealer or munigj.
pal securities dealer that has filed with the Board in compli-

ancewith rule A-12, who is directly engagedin the managa-

ment, direction or supervision of one or more of the

following activitios:
{A) underwriting, trading or sales of municipal securi.
ties;
(B) financial advisory or consultant services for issu-
m_mmumwmm
rities;
{C) processing, clearance, and. inthe case of brokers,
dealers and municipal securities dealers other than
bank dealers, safekeaping of municipal securities;
(D) research or investment advice with respect to
municipal securities;
(E) any other activities which involve communication

directly orindirectly, with public investors in municipa}
securfties;

{F) maintenance of records with respect to the activi-
ties described in subparagraphs (A) through (E); or

{G) training of municipal securities principals or mu-
nicipal securities representatives;

provided, however, that the activities enumerated in
above shall be limited to such
activities as they relate to the activities snumerated in

subparagraphs (D)) and

subparagraphs (A) or (B) above,

(i) Qualification Regquirements.
(A) Every municipal securities principal shall take and
pass the Municipal Sacurities Principal Qualification
Examination prior to_being qualified as a municipal
securities principal. The passing grads shall be deter-
mined by the Board.
(B) Any person seeking to bacome qualified as a
municipal securities principal jn_accordance with
subparagraph (b)(ij(A} of this_rule, must, prior to
being qualified as a municipal securities principal:

1} _have besen duly qualified as either a municipal
securities represeniative or a_general_securities
representative; or
{2) have taken and passed either the Municipal
Securities Representative Qualification Examina-

tion or the General Securities Registered Repre-
sentative Examination.
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broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer meeting the
requirements of paragraph {a)(2} or (3) of rule 15c3-1
under the Act or exempted from the requirements of rule
15¢3-1 in acecordance with paragraph (b)(3) thereof) shail
have at Ieast one financial and operations principal, inctud-
ing its chief financial officer, qualified in accordance with
paragraph (d)(if) of this rule.

() Confidentiality of Qualification Examinations. No associated
person of a broker, dealer or municipal securitios dealer shall:
() _in the course of taking a qualification examimnation re-
quired by this rule receive or give assistance of any nature;
(i} disclose to any person guestions, or answers to any
questions, on any qualification examination required by

this rule;

(i) engagein any activity inconsistent withthe confidential

nature of any qualification examination required by this

rule, or with fts purpose as_a test of the qualification of

parsons taking such examinations: or

(iv) knowinaly sign a false certification concerning any

such qualification exarnination.
()_Retaking of Qualification Examinations. Any associated
person of a broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer who
failsto pass a qualification examination prescribed by the Board
shall be permitted to take the examination again after a period
of 30 days has elapsed from the date of the prior examination,
except that any person who fails to pass an examination three
or more times in succession shall be prohibited from again

taking the examination until a period of six months has alégssd
from the date of such person's last attempt to pass the exami-
nation,

() Waiver of Qualification Requirements,

The requirements of paragraphs {a) (i), {a)(iii), bfi) and

{c){i) may be waived in extraordinary cases for any asso-
ciated person of a broker, dealar or municipal gecurities
dealer who demonstrates extensive exparience in a field
closely related to the municipal securities business of such
broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer, Such waiver
may be granted by

{A) a registered securities association with respect to

a person associated with a member of such associa-

tion, or

{8) the appropriate requlatory agency as defined in

section 3{a}(34) of the Act with respect to a person

associated with any other hroker. dealer or municipal
securities deater.

{I} The requirernants of paragraph {d}{ii) may be waivedfor
any associated person of a broker, dealer or rmunicipal
securities dealer in circumstances sufficient 1o justify the
granting of a waiver if such parson were seekingto register
and qualify with a member of a registered securities asso-
ciation as afinancial and operations principal. Such waiver
may be granted by a registered securities association with

regpect to a person_associated with a member_of such
association.

T
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Syndicate Expenses: Rule G-11

Notlce

The Board reminds dealers that syndicate expenses
charged to members must be clearly identifled and must be
the actual expenses incurred on behalf of the syndicate.

Board rule G-11, conceming syndicate practices, among
other things, requires syndicatesto establish priorities for differ-
ent categories of orders and requires certain disclosuras to
syndicate members which are intended to assure that alloca-
tions are made in accordance with thoss prioritias. Rule
G-11(h)()) requires that a senior syndicate manager, at or
before final settlement of a syndicate account, furnish to syndi-
cate members “an itemized Statement setting forth the nature
and amount of all actual expenses incurred on behalf of the
syndicate." One of the purposes of this section is to render
fhanagers accountable for their handling of syndicate funds.

Over the years, the Board, pursuant to rule G-11 and e
G-17, onfair dealing, has urged syndicate managersto provide
membars with a clear and accurate itemized statement of all
actual expenses incurred in the underwiiting of each issus. In
a 1984 notice, the Board stated that expense items must be
sufficiently described to make the expenditures readily under-
standabie by syndicate members, and that generalizad catego-
ries of expsnses are not sufficient if they do not portray the
specific nature of the expenses.’ In 1985, the Board issued a
notice specifically warning managers to take care in determin-

! Notice Cancaerning Disclosure of Syndicate Expenses (January 12, 1984)
2 Notice Conceming Syndicate Managers Charging Excassive Fees for

ing actual syndicate expenses, and noting that managers may
violate rule G-17 ifthe expenses chargedto syndicate members
bear norelation to, or otherwise overstate, the actual expenses
incurred2 And in 1987, in response to industry complaints
conceming the amount of syndicate expensaes charged by
managers, the Board issued another notice reterating that
Board rules prohibit managers from oversiating actual syndi-
cate expenses.?

The Board wishes to refterate its imerpretation of rules G-11
and G-17 that syndicate expenses charged to members must
be clearly identified and must be the actual expensas incurred
on behalf of the syndicate.* The Board continues to be con-
cemed over the number of complaints about syndicate manag-
ers who may be charging expenses that are ovarstated or
excessive, particularly with respect to clearance feas for desig- -
nated sales and computer expenses. Board rules specifically
prohibitmanagersfrom overstating actual syndicate expenses.

The Board urges syndicate members to feport possible
overstatements of syndicate expenses and cther problems in
compliance with rule G-11(h){}). The Board will continue to
monttorthis situation, and will refer any complaints it receives in
this areato the appropriate enforcement agencies. In addition,
the NASD has alerted the Board that it will accept telephone
compilaints or information from syndicate members who do not
wish to raveal their identities.

November 14 , 1991

Questions about this notice may be directed to Jill C.
Finder, Assistant General Counsel,

MSRB Manual (CCH) paragraph 3551,

Designated Sales (July 29, 1985) MSRB Manua/ (CCH) paragraph 3581.
3 Notice Concerning Syndicate Expenses that Appear Excessive (March 3, 1987) MSAB Manua/ (CCH) paragraph 3551,
4 See MSRB Reports, Vol. 5, No. 6 (November 1985), and Vol. 5, No. 5 (August 1985}, ) . ) .
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Arbitrator Training

The Board wishes to apprise arbitrators of the existence of educational programs offered by other self-regulatory organizations
(SROS) and non-SRO forums. The New York Stock Exchange, Inc. (NYSE) has scheduled arbitrator training seminars, using the
Sacurities Arbitrator Training Video produced by the American Arbitration Association {AAA) and the NYSE and a senior member of
the NYSE arbitration staff, for the following cities and dates:

New Orleans, LA May 14, 1992

Cincinnati, OH May 19, 1992

Cleveiand, OH May 20, 1992

Indianapolis, IN May 21, 1992

Hanford, CT June 17, 1992 .
Rochester, NY June 18, 1992 D

Forinformation concerning these and future NYSE training seminars, contact Robert S. Clemente, Diractor, Arbitration, NYSE, (212)
656-5608.

in addition, the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. (NASD) has scheduled the following arbitrator orientation programs
for new arbitrators during 1992:

Date City Contact

May 4, 1992 New York, NY Jill Wile, Esq. (212) B58-4400

June 1, 1982 New York, NY Valerie Bailey, Esq. (212) 858-4400

June 15, 1992 Tampa, FL Pamsla Burdick, Esq. (305) 522-7391

July 6, 1992 New York, NY Trey Hall (212) 858-4400

August 3, 1992 New York, NY Monica Shia, Esq. (212) 858-4400

August 3, 1992 Fort Lauderdale, FL Pamela Burdick, Esq. (305) 522-7391
© Sept. 14, 1992 New York, NY Jill Wile, Esg. (212)858-4400

Oct. 5, 1992 New York, NY Trey Hall (212) 858-4400

Qct. 5, 1992 _ Fort Lauderdale, FL Pamela Burdick, Esq. (305) 522-7391

Nov. 2, 1992 Naw York, NY Monica Shia, Esq. (212) 858-4400

Deac. 7, 1992 New York, NY Shari Sturm, Esq, (212) 858-4400

Dec. 14, 1992 Tampa, FL Pamela Burdick, Esqg. (305) 522-7391

For information about other NASD arbitrator education events, contact the NASD Arbitration Departrnent (212) 858-4400.
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Financial Statements—Fiscal Years
Ended September 30, 1991 and 1990

certified public accountants

Coopers
&Lybrand

Report of Independent Accountants

To the Members of the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, Inc. as of Septen-

/PE. ber 30, 1991 and 1990, and the related statements of revenues and

expenses and change in fund balance and cash flows for the years

then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of

the Board’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits using generally accepted audit-
ing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finan-
cial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, Inc. as of
September 30, 1991 and 1990, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principiles.

- e N A

Washington, Db.C.
November 1, 1991
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MUNICIPAL SECURITIES RULEMAKING BOARD, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
September 30, 1991 and 1990

ASSETS
1991 1990
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1) $ 212,618 $ 186,386
Investments (Note 1) 2,827,849 2,838,177
Assessment fees receivable (Note 1) 559,328 288,627
Accrued interest receivable 38,573 55,264
Other assets 20,665 38,986
Office furniture, equipment and
leasehold improvements, at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and
amortization of $399,441 in 1991
and $375,068 in 1990 (Note 1) 268,174 ___219.290
$3,927,207 $3,626,730 (:)
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Accounts payable $ 188,409 $ 62,006
Accrued salaries and vacation pay 51,392 41,992
Deferred rent credit (Note 2) 96,791 127,794
336,592 231,792

Commitments (Notes 2 and 5)

Fund balance 90 5 _ 3,354,938
3,927,207 3,626,730

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these financial statements. ()
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MUNICIPAL SECURITIES RULEMAKING BOARD, INC. “:)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the years ended September 30, 1991 and 1990

199] 1990

Cash flows from operating activities:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses: § 195,677 s {97,504)
Adjustments to reconcile excess (deficiency)
of revenues over expenses to net cash
used by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 107,694 79,895
Gain on sale of fixed assets (21,040) -
Increase in accounts receivable (270,701) (156, 339)
Decrease in interest receivable 16,691 17,966
{(Increase) decrease in other assets 18,321 (21,689)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued expenses 135,803 (30,658)
~ Decrease in deferred credit (31.003) {3]1.000)
Total adjustments (44,235) {14]1.825)
Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities 151.442 (239,329
Cash flows from investing activities: O
Acquisition of office equipment (137,025) (184,979)
Proceeds from sale of office equipment 1,487 97
Purchases of U.S. Treasury Notes (2,240,719) (944 ,094)
Maturities of U.S. Treasury Notes 2,250,000 1,450,000
Amortization of investment premium/discount 1.047 (21.483)
Net cash provided {(used) by investing
activities (125,210) 209 541
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . 26,232 - 60,212
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 86,386 126,174
‘Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $§ 212,618 BE, 386

The accompanying notes are an integral part :
of these financial statements. ‘z:)
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f% MUNICIPAL SECURITIES RULEMAKING BOARD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE _
for the years ended September 30, 1991 and 1990
1991 —1990
Revenues:
Assessment fees (Note 1) $3,350,957 $2,482,909
Annual fees (Note 1) 264,200 277,800
Initial fees (Note 1) 22,600 24,900
Investment income 213,366 267,010
MSIL fees 22,822 -
Board manuals and other 93,840 71,882
3,967,785 3:,124,50]
Expenses;
Administration and operations 1,317,169 1,067,948
Board and committee 508,133 536,061
Professional qualifications 258,229 225,583
Arbitration 234,644 209,863
MSIL:
Zi:) Development (Note 5) 644,987 558,212
' Operations (Note 5) 86,714 36,013
Education and communications 327,544 297,474
Rulemaking and policy development 394,688 290,85]
3,772,108 3,222,005
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenses 195,677 (97,504)
Fund balance, beginning of year 3,394,938 3,492,442
Fund balance, end of year §3,590,615 $3,394,938

The accompanying notes are an integral part

of these financial statements.
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MUNICIPAL SECURITIES RULEMAKING BOARD, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting policies

The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the
Board) was established in 1975 pursuant to authority granted
by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended by the
Securities Acts Amendments of 1975, as an independent, self-
regulatory organization charged with rulemaking responsi-
bility for the municipal securities industry. Effective May
17, 1989, the Board became incorporated as a nonprofit, non-
stock corporation in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

SSesS es

The underwriting assessment fee is equal to a
percentage of the face amount of all municipal
securities which are purchased from an issuer as
part of a new issue by or through such municipal
securities broker or municipal securities dealer,
whether acting as principal or agent, and which
have a final stated maturity of not less than two
years and an aggregate par value of not less than
$1,000,000. The fee charged was .002% on all such
sales for the year ended September 30, 1990. The
fee charged was increased from .002% to .003% on
August 1, 1991. Revenue from assessment fees is
recognized upon the sale of the issue and is paya-
ble within 30 days of settlement between the under-
writer and the issuer.

ees

Each municipal securities broker and municipal
securities dealer is required to pay an annual fee
of $100 with respect to each fiscal year of the
Board in which the municipal securities broker or
municipal securities dealer conducts business.

ees

The initial fee is a one-time fee of $100,

which is to be paid by every municipal securities

broker or municipal securities dealer registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Revenue from initial fees is recognized when
received by the Board.

Continued
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MUNICIPAL SECURITIES RULEMAKING BOARD, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments
Investments in securities are stated at amor-

tized <cost, which approximates market value.
Investments consist entirely of U.S. Treasury

‘notes, maturing on various dates through November

1992. It is management’s intention to hold each
note through maturity.

Equipment, improvements., related depreciation and
amortization

Furniture and equipment are recorded at cost
and are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful 1lives of the assets.
Leasehold improvements are amortized using the
straight-line method over the shorter of the
remaining lease period or the estimated useful life
of the improvement.

When assets are retired or sold, the related
cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from
the accounts, and any profit or loss arising from
such disposition is included as income or expense.

Cash and cash equijvalents

Cash and cash eguivalents include cash on
hand, time and demand deposits, and money market
funds with maturities of three months or less.
Cash and cash equivalents includes amounts held by
banks and financial institutions in the United
States.

e ssification
Certain amounts in the 1990 financial state-

ments have been reclassified to conform with the
1991 presentation.

Lease agreements

on November 16, 1984, the Board leased new office

Continued

space under a lease agreement expiring in November 1994.
This agreement calls for the Board to receive a rent credit
equal to one-half of the base monthly rent for the first 30
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months of the lease. As a result, the monthly rental pay~-
ments were $9,350 through May 1987 and are $18,700 a month
for the remainder of the lease term, subject to an annual
escalation based on the Consumer Price Index and a propor-
tionate share of the increase in the costs of operating the
building. For financial reporting purposes, the Board is
recognizing rental expense evenly during the 10-year lease
term at $16,105 a month. The Board is required to maintain
an irrevocable letter of credit of $18,700, in lieu of a
security deposit, payable to the lessor as part of the lease
agreement. The lease may be renewed at the Board’s option,
for a period of five years, in accordance with the terms set
forth in the lease agreement.

On August 7, 1990, the Board amended its existing
lease agreement, allowing for 2,313 additional square feet of
office space. Initial base monthly rent is $4,530, with
annual escalations similar to those of the existing lease
agreement. The Board is committed to this arrangement until
August 31, 1992, at which time it shall have the option to
extend the lease agreement.

I ' .
£:> Total lease expense for office space and equipment
- for the years ended September 30, 1991 and 1990, was $374,257
and $290,887, respectively.

3. Retirement plans

The Board has a defined-contribution retirement
plan. All employees are eligible to participate upon attain-
ing a minimum length of service. The Board makes contribu-
tions to an insurance company based on a percentage of the
salaries of covered employees and their lengths of service.
Retirement plan costs are funded as they accrue. Employees
may also make veoluntary contributions. Cost of the plan was
approximately $84,000 and $68,000 for the years ended Septem-
ber 30, 1991 and 1990, respectively.

The Board also has a deferred compensation plan
which covers all employees. The Board contributes $.50 for
every $1 contributed by an employee, with a maximum Board
contribution of 2% of the employee’s annual salary. The cost
of this plan was approximately $14,000 and $13,000 for the
years ended September 30, 1991 and 1990, respectively.

i:) Continued
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Income taxes

Under provisions of the Internal Revenue Code and
applicable income tax regulations of the District of Colum-
bia, the Board is exempt from taxes on income other than
unrelated business income. No provision for income taxes has
been made as of September 30, 1991 and 1990, since the Board
believes that any unrelated business income is not signifi-
cant.

MSIL Technical Support Agreement

On September 1, 1989, the Board entered into an
agreement with an independent contractor which provides for
the delivery of products and technical services in support of
its development of the MSIL (Municipal Securities Information
Library), which collects, stores and disseminates official
statements and advance refunding documents.

on August 12, 1991, the Board amended the agree-
ment, increasing estimated total costs for this cost plus
fixed fee contract to $964,899, with the fixed fee component
of $54,271. For the years ended September 30, 1991 and 1990,
$456,822 and $428,169 of costs were incurred on this contract

in the development of MSIL, respectively. Payment terms
provide for the monthly billing of the contractor’s actual
costs plus a proportionate amount of the fixed fee. The

duration of the contract is through April 1, 1992.

The conditions of the contract allow for either
party to terminate the agreement at any time provided one
party states an effective termination date in its written
notice thereon.

.
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Publications List

Manuals and Rule Texts

MSRB Manual

goft-cover edition containing the text of MSRB rules, interpre-
tive notices and [etters, sampies of forms, texts of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and of the Securities Investor Protection
Act of 1970, as amended, and other applicable rules and
reguiations affecting the industry. Reprinted semi-annually.
April1,1892. ..o vi $5.00

Glossary of Municipal Securities Terms

Glossary of terms (adapted from the State of Florida's Glossary
of Municipal Bond Terms) defined according to use in the
municipal securities industry.

LT - = J $1.50

professiona! Qualification Handbhook

A guide to the requirements for qualification as a municipal
securities representative, principal, sales principal and financial
and operations principal, with questions and answers on each
category. Includes sections on examination procedures, waiv-
ars, disqualification and lapse of qualification, the text of MSRB
quafification rules and a glossary of terms.

1990 ......iiinnn S copiesperorder ........ no charge
Each additionalcopy .........c.cvvviiiiinint, $1.50
Manual on Close-Out Procedures

A discussion of the close-out procedures of rule G-12(h)(j} ina
question and answerformat. Includes thetext of rule G-12{h) {f)
with each sentence indexed to particular questions, and a
glossary of terms.
January 1, 1985

Arbitration Information and Rules

Based on SICA's Arbitration Procedures and edited to conform
to the Board's arbitration rules, this pamphiet includes the text
of rules G-35 and A-16, a glossary of terms and list of other
sponsoring organizations.

1991 no charge

Instructions for Beginning an Arbltration
Step-by-step instructions and forms necessary for filing an
arbitration claim.

1991 no charge

.....................................

The MSRB Arbitrator's Manual

The Board's guide for arbitrators. Based on SICA's The Arbitra-
tors Manual, it has been edited to conform to the Board's
arbitration rules. It also contains relevant portions of the Code
of Ethics for Arbitrators in Commercial Dispirtes.

1997 . e e $1.00

Reporter and Newsletter

MSAB Reports

The MSRB's reporter and newsletter to the municipal securities
industry. Includes notices of rule amendments filed with and/or

approved by the SEC, notices of interpretations of MSRB rules,

requests for comments from the industry and the public and

news items.

Quanerly ............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiinan. no charge

Examination Study Outlines

A series of guides outlining subject matter areas a candidate
seeking professional qualification is expected to know. Each
outline includes a list of reference materials and sample ques-
tions.

Study Outline: Municipal Securities Representative
Qualification Examination

Outiine for Test Series 52,

November1989 ................cociiiiiiiiian, no charge

Study Outline: Municipal Securities Prlncipal
Qualification Examination

Outline for Test Series 53.

July 1990

...................................

no charge

Brochure

MSRB Information for Municipal Securitles Investors
Investor brochure describing Board rulemaking authority, the
rules protecting the investor, arbitration and communication
with the industry and investors. Use of this brochure satisfies
the raquirements of rule G-10.

11o500copies ........cvvviviiiiiiniiicaean.n no charge
Over500copies ............ccocvviininane, $.01 per copy






